" JUDGE

| FEDERAL HIGH COURT
IN THE FEDERAL HIGH COURT OF NIGERIA _LOKOJA —
IN THE CALABAR JUDICIAL DIVISION .
HOLDEN AT CALABAR

ON WEDNESDAY, THE 25" DAY OF MAY, 2016
BEFORE HIS LORDSHIP HONOURABLE JUSTICE PHOEBE M. AYUA
JUDGE

SUIT NO: FHC/CA/CS/55/2007

BETWEEN:

1. ARITA PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED '
2. DR. FRANCIS E. U. ISANGEDIGHI ...PLAINTIFFS/COUNTER

3. MRS. HENRIETTA N. ISANGEDIGHI DEFENDANTS

VS.

1. STERLING BANK PLC
(FORMERLY EQUITORIAL TRUST BANK PLC)....15" DEFENDANT/

COUNTER CLAIMANT
2. ECONOMIC & FINANCIAL CRIMES COMMISSION
€5 o o) TR 2"° DEFENDANT
JUDGEMENT

The 1% Plaintiff entered into & Contract with the 1% Defendant whereby
pursuant to the application of the 1 Pldmuﬁ Exhibit P15 the 1%
Defendant offered H20m (Twcnty Million Naira) Overdraft facmty, Exhibit
Pl, to the 1% Plaintiff upon the -cond‘itions contained in the letter of offer
dated the 03/02/1998. The 1% Plaintiff accepted the offer upon the set
conditions and the 2™ Plaintiff, the Vice Chairman, and the 3" Plaintiff as
the Managing Director of the 1% Plaintiff, i'espectively,_did sign and stamp
the Contract on behalf of the 1% Plaintiff on the 09/02/199€. The 2™ and

3 Plaintiffs were also the authc»riqu Qignatnri‘s to the 1% Plaintiff's

st
ccount with the 17 Defendant. 4 \,_\gg r,?/,h Z\
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i The surm of & (Five Million Nazira) only was disbursed tg the 1* Flamtlr'
and by a |etter dated the 10/07/1998  Evhihit F3, the 1% Defendant

indicated thejr Fegret Lo inform the 1% Plaintif that "Considering the

present portfolio COnStrEint, further disbursemernt af the MN20m Petroleur
Trust Fund Contract facility granted o Your company in Fe ebruary, 1998
would no lonqpr be accomrmodatzd.” Ir, the same letter, the r * Defendant

asL_ed the 1% Plaintiff to mal- ® NECEssary arrangements to refund the N5m

Naira already disbursed to it a3 soon as possible,

The 1% Plaintiff Paid part of the loan averdraft facility of & M5m, but did not

complete the FeEpayment, aven after demands from the 1** Defendant. The
1% Defendant then wrate 3 petition, Exhibit F19 to the 2" Defendant

alleging fraudulent diversion of Bank’s funds by the 27 354 31 Plaintiffs,

describing them as Pramoters of the 1% Plaintiff, The Defendant invited
the 2" Plaintiff for questioning. The Defendants felt aggrieved and
instituted this Syit against the 1% zng ond Defendants sseking de eclaratory
and injunctive reljsfs and special and Jenaial “hm J25, Up to & tofal of
F200,000,000.00 (Two Hundred Millon Neira Only), |

To bhe precise, the Plaim:if'r's,' in their Amended Statement of Clajm, Claim
againzt the Defendants ag follows:
a. A Declaration that the Plaintifis are not indebted to the 1% Defendant
in that the debt js statute-barred.

b. An Order restrainingﬂw 1% and_ond E‘rfcl'lc“lcillt“ from attempting to
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The 1% Defendant, on its part, filzd a Staterment of Defence / Counter

Claim and counter claimed a3 follows:

o

- An Qrder of perpetual injunction detl:lll'lll'llj the 2" Defendant, its

- N200m (Twi Hundred Million Haira), b@ing Special and general

. An Order for the payment by the Plaintifs of the said debt of

~JUDGFE
FEGERAL HIGK COURY
LOKOJA

- A Dedlaration that the ™ Defandant I'Iu.: 1o tht or power | to

recover debts  lzgitimately owed in s transaction between a

banker/customer.

o GRS, TR A AT 7w s

agents, privies or assigns from l(ﬂ"ﬁv‘-llng or attcn,pi_mg (O recover

any ::l”("qi:'(,l debi owed the 150D erendant ;;n;‘iﬁ W arT ,:31_”-,9, deiannng,

investigating, intimidating the Plaintiffs on any matter connected with

Equitarial Trust Bank, Plc.

o et st

damages for frustration of contract and unlawful arrest and detention
of the 2™ and 2 F’lamurn by the 2™ Defendant on the instruction of
the 1% Defendant.

. A Declaration that the 1% Plaintii with its guarantors — the 2™ and
2" Plaintiffs - are indebted to the 1% Defendant jointly and severally
in the sum of N19,199 630,57 as =t 31/05/2DD(5 and interest thereof '
at the rate of 25% per annum from the end of 31/05/2006 until the s '

debt is repaid. ' |

I'

}19,199,680.52 as at 21/05/2006 and interest thereof at the rate of
25% per annum frcnm =21/05/2006 until judazment and U’l{éih,aﬂcl,
the rate of 10% per annum until the & judgement de»tAk%}anﬁd
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The Plaintiffs called 2 Witnesses, being the 2 an4 SWEl;“fintiffs, while the

1% Defendant called one witness, Mr. Abimbade Clumide Dere as the DW1

and the ond Defendant also called a lone witness, Mohammed Musa, DW2,

This case has a chequered history. My Learned Brc'thers, three of them

had sat on this Case since 2007 o 2012, This case however, came before
me for the firse time on the 05/11/2012 for mentior. On the 13/05/2013,

this case came up before me; this time for trial ge 710V0.

The Plaintiffs’ Counsel called their first witness, the 2nd Plaintiff on record,
Dr. Francis Effiong Uwe Isangedighi, The PW1 adopted hjs armende|
written Statement on Qath filed before thig Caurt on the 05/03/2012 as his

FEDETAL RIGH cou_gf

evidence in this case. Twenty-six documents were tendered in evidence by

PW1 and with hc» objection from the Defence, all the documents wera
admitted in evidence and marked as follows: .
1. Letter of Oiffer of N20m overdraft facility by Equitorial Trust Banl: Ltd,
to the 1% Flaintiff, dated the 03/02/199g, markad as Exhibit p1.

2. Lefter  titjod: DOMICILIATION ~ oF PAYMENT:  ARITA
PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED from Petroleum Trust Fund to the
Manager, ETE, Aba, Ahiz State, dated the (04/02/199g, marked as
Exhibit 2,

MILLION PET ROLEUM TRUST FUND CONTRACT FACILITY, dated

0% C ) : Ir\
T07/1938 from ETB to the wp, ARITA - PHARMAGELTTCALR .

¥
LIMITED, CALAEAF, CROSS FIVEF STATE, marted a3 E.s{‘p}bit F3.
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4 Letter of RE: INDERTEDNESS TO EQUITORIAL TRUST BANK
LIMITED, dated the 20/05/1999 FROM ETB to the MD, ARITA
PHARMACEUTICALS_ LIMITED, CALABAR, CROSS  RIVER STATE,
marked as Exhibi't P4, |

>. Letter of FINAL DEMAND NOTICE: INDEETEDNESS To EQUITORIAL
TRUST BANK LIMITED to the MD, ARITA PHARMACEUTICALS
LIMITED, dated the 06/01/2001, marked a5 Exhibit ps5,

e

~'~i;_'2...3'.~;-,..m;;,¢;;a',m@_ Ry

6. Co-operative Developrment Bank Fle. cheque, dated the 27/01/2000

in favour of Equitarial Trust Bank Limited, marked as Exhibit Pe.

7. Undated letter from the 1% Plaintiff to the 15 Defendant (ETB) titled:
STOPPAGE OF N20 MILLION PETROLEUM TRUST FUND CONTRACT
LOAN: DEMAND FOR OFFICIAL COMMUNICATION signed by the 3
Plaintiff, marked a5 Exhibit Py, ’

co

. Letter from 1% Defendant to the 1% Flaintiff, titled: RE: REQUEST
FOR 709 INTEREST WAIVER ON YOUR OUTSTANDING FACILITY,
dated the 29/01/1999, marked as Exhibit pa.

9. Letter from the 1% Plaintiff, signzd by the 2 Plaintifr to the 1%
Defendant, titled: PE: CREDIT FACILITY, dated the 09/06/19%8,
maited as Exhibit pg.
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10, Co-cperative b

evelopment Eank Fle, ch
Defendant from the 15 Fi
Exhibit P10,

o

€qUE, In Tavour of the 1st

3intiff, datzd the 27/05/ 2000, marked as

‘s,
=

11 Co-operative Development Bank Flc. cheque in favour of the 1%

Defendant from the 1 Plaintiff, dated the 10/04/2000, marked
Exhibit P11, .
12, Co-cperative Development Banl

Flc. cheque in favour of the 1%

Defendant from the 1t Flaintiff, dated the 10/03/2000, marled as

Exhibit P12,

13. CITIZENS EAn, Bank Limited, cheque in
favaour of the 15 Defendant, dated the 27/07/149
P13, | | '

Citizens International

99, marled as Exhibit

14. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN  ARITA
PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED AND EQUITOR

JAL" TRUST BANK
LIMITED, Evecuted on the 21/07/1999, maited Exhibit P14,

15. - APPLICATION

FOR N20,000,000.00 (TWE
OVEP

DEAFT/WORKING CAPITAL FACILITY,
1%t Defendant, dated the 12/12/1907

NTY  MILLION NAIRA)

from 1% Plaintiff to the
, marked Exhibit P15,

16.  EQUITORIAL TRUST BANK LIMITED Guar

antee - By an individual,
Form No, 290, signed by the

3" Plaintiff, marked a
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17, Letter from the 1 Defendant to the 1% Plaintife titled: yOUR
NlS,O?’E),l?S.OZ INDEBTEDNESS TO EQUITORIAL TRUST BANK
LIMITED AS AT STH MAY, 2005, dated the 05/05/2005, marked s
Exhibit P17, | o -

18. Letter from the = Plaintiff to the 1% Defendant titled: RE.
WITHDRAWAL FROM FURTHER DISBURSEMENT OF N20 MILLION
PTF CONTRACT: REQUEST Fop 80% WAIVER OF INTEREST, dated
the 27/05/ 1995, marked as Exhibit P18,

19.  Letter 'from 1%t Defendant to the ond Defendant (EFCC) titlaq:
FRALIDULENT DIVERSION oF EAMIZ FUNDS BY DR, & MRs. FRANCIS
E. U. ISANGEDIGH] - FROMOTERS OF ARITA PHARMACEUTTCALS
LIMITED, dated the 15/03/2007, marted s Exhibit P19,

20. ALL ASSETS DEBENTURE OF 1°7 DEFENDANT with reference No.
ET] B/CSLEJ/(I)C)4B, with annewed schedule of Property and Rent value,
marked &s Exhibit P2, | ’ |

21. EQUITORIAL TRUST BANK LIMITED GUARANTEE — By an individual,
Form No, 390, signed by the 20 Flaintiff, marked ag Exhibit p21.

Y
ro ..

ETB PROMISORY NOTE, signed by the 3" plaintifs and the _Secretary
of the 1% Plaintif an behalf of the 1% Flaintiff, marked as Exhibit pzo

(nOt datEd). . c’/f;éa 'rp&;‘w.\v
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NS PE‘“TIi M SURPVEY AHD VALUATION FEFUFT FOF DF. E. UL

ISANGEDIGHI OM ASSETS OF AFITA FHAFMACEUTICALS LIMITED,

PLOT 277, ETA AGEC LAYOQUT, CALAEAF, CPOSS PIVER STATE EY
GEFSH HENSHAW & CO. ESTATE SURVEYORS & VALUERS |

DEVELOPMENT (‘ZDI’JSI_ILTAI'JTS date of inspection being Thursday,
the 31% October, 1996, marked as Exhibit P23,

. PETPOLEUM (SPECIAL) TRUST FUMND ESSEMNTIAL DFUG PEVOLVING

FUMD (DFF), STORFE FECEIPT VOWUCHEPS, Four in number and
stapled together and collectively marked as Ex hlblt P24,

PETFOLEUM (SPECIAL) TPUST FUNDr ESSENTIAL DFUG FEVOLVING
FLIND (DFF) TWELVE (1) STORE FECEIPT VOUCHEPRS, stapled
together and collectively marked as Exhibit P25,

Letber from Afri-Projects Consartium to the 1% Plaintiff, titled: PTF
LOCAL GOVEFMMENT DPUGS SUFFLY PPOJECT. “Warrant  of
Autharity to Commence Mationwide Delivery of FTF Esgential Drugs
to Local Gavernmeant Areas” dated the Dh/ lu/ 1997, markad Exhibit
P26.

The PW1 (2™ Plaintiff) testified that they were putting a claim because the

Plaintiffs have been wronged by the Bark (the 1 Defm*:clant) and that the

Plzintiffs contacted their lawyar to pursue their caims as contained in the

Statement of Claim and Written Statement on Oath as ariu pted by him.
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The 2™ Plaintise Was cross-examined by the 1% Defendant’s COlTSE, T e

Nwakz, Esq., in'lmediately_ Under Lrass-eMamination, the pwi stated that
the 1% Plaintiff applied for a Joan from the Defendant vide Exhibit F15,
before the 1st Defendant issued the |etter of offer tb the 1% Plaintif (that
i3, Exhibit F1). That the Plaintiffs accepted the terms and conditions in the

offer |ether, That the 2nd and 2 plaintiffs accepted the offer jetter or
behalf of the 13 PlaIntiff and that the Plaintiffs did satisfy the terms ang
conditions in the qst Defendant's offer letter apq that there was
disbursement of funds. That ane of the conditione was persona Juarantee
by the 2 gng 3w Flaintiffs but that the 27 gng 3w Plaintiffs did net
ERECULE any persong) guarantee on behalf of the 15t Plaintiff, The PW1 said
fie was not aware of any personzl Juarantze executed by the e and 3
Plaintiffs e guarantee the loan facility on béhalf of the 15 Plaintifs in favoyr
of the 1% DEféndant before this Caurt, PW1 stated thst the only loan
transaction Was between the 15 Plaintiff and the 1% Deféndant which the

- 1% Deferdant dig not see thl;ough. PW1 admitted that he Somplained that
the 1% Deferdant dishursed only Msmillion to the 1% Plaintiff ingtead of
NoOmillion stated i, the offer letter, PW1 said he did ot I'row that the 1%
Defendant and the Flaintiffs agreed that the 1% Dafendant could disburse

less than the H20million or hag a discretion to dishurse Jass than that
amaunt. That the Bany had agred to give N20millicon to the 1=t Flaintiff to

Complete the contract to deliver drugs to the Petraleum (Special) Trust
Fund (PTF), | |

The learned Counsel for the 15t Defendant drew the attention of the Court

o paragraph 3 of the offer letter and asked the FW1 to read the portion

ARITA P4
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but did not ag)- Jquestions on it and said he would save the jssue tor

address, |
PW1 further testified under cross-examination that the Plaintifis requested

the 1 Defendant ta surrender theijr SeCUrity documents ta them o znahle

S S o, 5. ARttt

the Plaintiffs to gy and ask for a loan fron anather bank:. That the 1% -

Defendant hagd disbursed anly NS out of the N20m adreed upon and then ]
the 1% Defendant Wrote to the 15 Flaintif Stafting in the letter that the 1% ;
Defendant coylg not disburse further funds to the 1% Plaintiff becayse of E’

e

the 1% Defendant's portfolio constrainis, PW1 stated that on the strength

of that letter, the Flaintiffs approached pez): Merchant Ban: which
demanded domiciliation Jetter from the PTF angd that the hank (1%

G e W i re)

Defendant) refused to surrender the documents o the Plaintiffs to enable
them give the same to the other hank, PW1 admitted that the 1%t Plaintirf
did nct repay the N5p already disbursed by the 1% Defendant when
'equested to do so byt explained that it was because the contrack was stij]
hanging. pw1 stated that the 18t Plaintiff had paid the sum of N2.6million
to the 1 Defendant. The PW1 said they had = fddence that they paid
NZ.amillion to the 1> Defendant byt that the evidence Was not with him in
the Court, pwi stated that he could not say whether at the paint they
Fequesied for the SeCUNty documents from the 1% Defendant, 'the Plaintiﬁ's
had paid part of the |nan granted to them by the 1% Defendant, FWi,
hawever, responded that long after the Fequest for the retyurn af the
Security dou:umenta, the parties erceéuted a Memorandum of Understanding
(MO dated the 21/07/1995 (Exhibit PH). That based an the MOU, the
1% Plaintif issued to the 1%t Defendantis«:vme past-dated cheques byt that
the cheques ware not cleared. pwi 2¥plained that before the MC)U, the

Flaintiffs felt disappainted that the 1% Defendant had let them }, ,@\@ﬁdmup
\ .
5

7 Ll )

e
ARITA PAARMACEUTZC LS 1 7p, = = ORS. v. STERLING BANK P12 AV SUIT MO, F, A/




JUDGE ]
FEDERAL HIGH CouRrT

' LOKoJA ' )
~ the Plaintiffs =N9ag2d the services of Counsal who sued The T Dare r'u'cT"l'T‘Ja 1w 3

That the 1% Defendant then fan to their lawyer who drafted the

Mermaorandurn of Understanding and that Lefore the MOU, the 1% Flaintif

issued a cheque of N1m to the 1% Defendant and it went through but that

after the signing of the MOU, the 1= Defendant requested and the Plaintific

issued to the 1% Dafendant post-dated cheques but that the cheques could
naot be honoured hecsyze as at then the 15 plaintis went under owing to
the fact that the 1% Plaintiff's factory was na longer running due to lask of
funds. That the 1%t Plaintiff did not repay the loan as agreed by the MOU
because the factory Stopped running. PWI admitted that it is not correct to
gay that the 1% Defendant foraed the Plaintifis to issue the post-dated

cheques because Is3Uing of post-dated chzques is a normal banking

Situation even at the World Bant-, That the loan was supposed to fe paid

by the PTF from the contract proceeds and that there Was a letter of
domiciliation front the PTF to the lstDefendant, dated the 04/02/1953
(Exhibit p2), stating that payments of Proceeds from the contract between
the 1% Plaintiff and pTF were 0 be made to the 15 Defendant (ETB). pw1
stated that he was not aware of any pavment made straight to the is'f
Defendant by pTF, PW1 stated that the total amount of the contract
between PTF and the 1% Flaintiff was K51million, That at the end, the PTF
paid all the contract Proceeds to the 1% Plaintif through the Linited Banl;
for Africa, Plc., Calabar, That the 1% Plaintiff was paid half of the Froceeds
and that when the 1%t Plaintiff could net aet funding, thay borrowed money
at very high interest rate to complete the contract failing the 1t
Defendant’s further disburserment of furds to the 1I* Plaintiff due to

partfolio constraints., That the 1% Defendant petitioned the Economic and

. . - .. . -~ e TR AN
- Financial Lrimes  Commission (EFCO), AT -
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Plaintiffs diverted funds that would haya COMe to the 1t Defendant, PWlw
Maintained that the 1t Defendant Stopped funding the projact and that the
Plamtiffsvhad ho choice byt ¢, lock for funding elsewhere hyy at very high
Interest rate, PW1 admittag that before tha 1 Defendant Pelitioned the

e ey =S e
sttt IR

P e

Nt

2nd Defendant (EFCC), tha ISt»Defendant WIdte to the gst Plaintiff

e

'equesting the st Flaintiff ¢ Pay back the Ioan else the I* Defandant
Would repept the Flaintifis to the EFce (2nd Defendant) for Invstigation.

:,—;ﬂaa._%fw‘-;:’z:—:::vit =

-

PWI statad that he Would not Fnow Why the Hnd Defendang (EFCC) Write

SR T

to the Plaintiffs because the 2nd Defendant (EFCC) jg nat there g Collect

o kg,

debt, Thar the POSt-dated chegues ISS U by the gs Plaintiff +s the 1%
Defendapt are Exhihits before the Court ang that the 1t Defandant
frustrated the Project, pyyy testified under “ross-examination that the pnd
Defendant (EFCC) detained him at the Akjm Police Statinn for haurs arter
inviting him. Py Stated thar he Knows that the ond Defendant does not
have an Cffice in Calabar, |

The 1%t Defendant’s Counsel then closaq his rOss-avamination of FW1. The
Plaintiffs’ Counsel dig Ot re-examine the Pwy . The matter Was adjourned. '
The 2nd Defendant’s _Counsel, C. A, Okali, Esq., then Conducted Cross-
SxXamination of the PW; on the 14/05/2013. Undef‘cross-e?‘:amination, the
PW1 admitted that he hag told this Coyrt that he js 5 Surgeon and that he |
| trained in Nigeria for his firgt degres at the University Collzge Ibadan: . i
(affiliate of the Collzge of the University of L\:»nd.:»n_) in 19671, FW1 alsol |
Stated that he g the Frincipal Director of th I Plainti, That for the
PuUrposes of his training ag a Surgeon, he was resident jn London from
1974 — 1975 in the Urolagy Unit at the F'::'st-GracIuaté Medica)

Hammersmi"ch Hospital, Duncane Foad, Londan, That he was ¢

RIT 3 FHARN 4y EUTICALS
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the Universi'ty of Lages eaching Hospitz (LUTH) ang that after
graduation, pe returned o LUTH,. That LUTH ok care or  hijs

the Federal Government Of Nigeria ang that his szl

{
!
accormodation i Londaon ang alsa toolk Care of hjs tav ang Maintenance j
of the building ar Water rates, That he dig not earn 3 salary in London
while daing his F'-:»st-Graduate Course there. That during the time of
training he wag XPosed o paying taxes, Pwi admitted that pe told h
the Caurt the Frevious day that the 15t _ 3 Plaintiffs recejved money from ?

PTF Up to the tune of N51p a9 Contract sum which Is the tota Money they
Wwere _ventually giver. FWI stated that in paragraph' 2 of his Written 8

Statement o Oath he Mentioned that the 1%t Plaintiff jc an incorporate.:
“Ompany  under the Corporata Affairs Commissian of the Federa)
Governmiant Of Nigeria, FW1 admitted that the 1%t Plaintiff, tl':evrefore, Owes
the Fedara Government of Nigeriz cartsjn responsibi!ities, including the
PaYMent of taxes FW1 said that he Knows that the 2™ Defendant (EFCC)

0

JO2S after Feople. That he is alsa awars that the EFCCis an adency of the

Federg Government of Nigerig, established o the enforcement of
Econiomi- and Financiz) Crimies. pyyq agreed that jt s frue thar B evasion
IS &lso part of SCLNOMIC Crime, PW1 admitteqd that the Plaintiffs receiveg
NS1m from prE but that he dig not tender gy document before this Court

0 show that the 1%, 2% and 3 Flaintiffs made Y Tay payments to the
Federz Government of Nigeriz either by way of Income Tax or Value
Added Tas, PWI admitteq that in hjs relationship With the st Defendant,

he hag signed d Number of dacuments, S0me of which had baen admitted
in evidence and marted accordingly, PW1 stateqd that in S0me of thege

documents the obligations . the Flaintiffs and those of the 1% Deﬁenclani;, <R T'?zz?\\
4 .\.. - ‘;‘! K Y

. o . . . " £-:\ ‘.'5',\

2re stated, 2 identifisd the cheques shown tr) hirm ang adrmitted that pets ~__ A
w 2d. He jo / | &, AN ! ::C,\u_ Uéﬁ'@@ :
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/ issued the cheques, PW1, however, stategd
/o ane Defendant (EFCC) has SOmMe Offices in Nigeria and that the Nearest to
Calabar, the Jurisdiction of this Court, is in Pc»r't—Harcourt. PW1 s3id he was

AWAre that one of the Cifices of the ynd Defendant js in Abuja, hyt that he

is not aware of thie Znd Defendant’s offices at Enugu, Lagos, tana and
Gombe and thar the 2nd Defendant has detention, facilities jr ) of the 6

Officec, FW1 sajd he Was aware that the -ond Defendant has ne Office or -

= K S Tty e

detention facilitizs in Calabar, pw said he wayld disagrea that the ond !
Defendant: djd not detain hing jn Calabar. The PW1 was shown Exhibit p1g his

PW1 alsn agreed that jn Paragraphs 16, 17, 19, 21 and 27 of his Statemnent
on Qath, he PW1, said he Was arrested by the nd Defendant it the behegt
of the 15 Defendant Who wants to, recover mongy from the Plaintiffs, That
the ond Defendant Was procured to Come and extraet maney from the
Flaintifvs, Pwi, however, also  stated that no PErsonnel of the and
Defendant ool Maney from i, PW1 also said he agreéd that in 3 S2rious

matter such 33 the allegation af fraud adainst the Flaintiffs, jt W3s praper

for the twa Sides to be heard byt did not agree that it wag 0 be ahla to

hear his cwn side of the Story that, he PW1, was invited by the 2nd

T

Defendant because, according to him, the 2nd Defendant haq No business
in the mafter. PW1 stated that he did not know whether diversion of funds
is within the SCOPe Of economic Crimes. Pw1 agreed that issuing of dud
cheques g within the SCope of econarmic Crimes, hut net Post-dated

Cheques. Pw/1 denied £vading the Payment of tax to the Government afte

receiving the SUMm of 451 m from PTE.
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On the same 14/05/2013, the FWZ was Called to th<~ witness biow, STIC

affirmed to s rm' the truth wfnl

During evamination- -in-chief 2, (3" Flaintiff), Mrs, Henrietta Nene
Isangedighi, said she is an Industrial Fharmacist

L, residing in Calahar, She
adopted her written statement an Oath, filed befara this court on the
(15/03/2013, as her evidence in this case. The Plaintiffs’ Counsel then
surrendered her for of Lss-eramination. The Counsel for the 1* Defendant
s-examined the PW2.

testifying.

, the P

crosg

Under Cross-examination, the F'W,_ stated that she, pwa2 ~and the 2™
Plaintiff (PW1) applied for an overdraft facility

from the 18t Defend

. e A

on bchah of the 1% Plaintiff
ant. That the Plaintiffs issued seve

q 0 pay the loan and it woul
the Plaintiffs issued the cheques to rep

intending to pay the

es to the 1%
Defen dant intending d not be COrrect to say that

ay the loan, but actually ng

2 szid loan. FW2 said she had seen the Citizen Bank %
Cheque shown ta her, That the cheque appears to have been signed by
the 2" plaintife (PW1) and bearing the stamp of the 1% Flaintiff (Arita
Pharmaceutic

cals Limited), The Flaintiffs’
e¥amination of the FW2 based on th

25/09/2000 becaysze though plead&d

Defendant’s Counsel withdrew the

n o K LS T B AR S A AN Y V2
SENEREA
rin g aea
HER G
S K .

counzel objected to the Cross-

at Citizen Eanl: chequ

(2]

dated the
it was not rontloaded, The 1%

cheque an-l applied orally to the Court
for an Order to file and serve th«a said cheque on the Plaintffs and for an
cheque az properly filzd and
Counsel did not object to the

Order dpemmq the sajd

gzrved. The Flaintiffs’
oral application. The same was granted and
nsal s

the 1% Defendan it's Coun 2rved the Citizen Banl: cheque dated the
25/09/2000 on the P

laintiffs” Counsel who alzo acceptad it PWZ further —

/E TRy,
could nat remember how | :

testified under Cross-evamination that she

ARITH FHARMACEUTICALS 1 TD. & 2 ORS.
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j the Plaintiffs were owing the 1 Defendant hyt that the Plai_ntiﬁ's' had paid

7 o the 18t Defendant, the surm of MN3.6m. That the Plaintiffs supplied all the
security demanded fop the overdraft facility as stated in Paragraph 2 of,

the letter of oifer (Exhibit P1) including the letter of domiciliation from the

P FTF (Exhibit P2). FW2 stated that the Payment for the contract Was dione j
/ N instalments, That the Plaintiffs wrate 3 et to the 1% Defandant dated ?‘

o i

the 09/06/1993, Exhibit P9, ang complained that only NSm hag been

2

disbursed by the 1% Defendant, That after that letter, the Flaintiffs and the

i
1% Defendart entared into 3 Memoranduym of l_lnders.tandn'ug (MOL) daten

e

the 21/07/19494 (Exhibit F14). That the 1= Defendant wrote 3 letter to the
2nd Detendant (EFCC) that the Plaintiffs diverted the funds in question byt

that she never saw the letter before the time she was shown the lattey in
Caurt, pw2 Maintained that the Plaintiffs were Not owing the 15t Defendant
bacause the overdrait facility hag lasted for Up 10 & years as stated in the
statement on O_afh of PW2, pw> stated that she is not a lawyer to know

|
i

il

il
H
j
i
i
i
|

The 1% Defendant’s Cournsel closed his Cross-examination of FWZ, The

Flaintiffs’ Counsel said he was nat Fe-eXamining PW2, The nd Defendant
Counse| SrOSS-Examined PWZ on the 03/07/2013.

Under Cross-examination, the PW2 agreed that she is a Director of the 15
Flaintiff, pyyz stated that the central subject in thic Suit is that the Plaintiffs
took an averdrart facility fram the 15 Defendant hyt that Plaintiffs did not
pay bacl the overdrart facility as at when due or Sxpected. That in an
&ffort to pay the loan, the Flaintifes issued cheques to the 1% Defendant
and that the theques were not dud cheques, byt that on Presentation the

chaques were pot honoured because there was no Mongy in the ar«a@ﬁ-ﬂ?ﬁ’m
. ' A\ )

N
Sy YO
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o of the 1% Naintif as at the time the cheques were RFresented. The pyys

saidl she was ot aware that the st Defendant Wrote an application to _tne
2nd Defendant apd that the Petition of the it Defendant tg the ond
Defendant (Exhibit P19) was shown her in the Court for the firat tine but
that she, PWZ, did not divert the funds or Jaan received from the 1%
Defendant for Personal use, That the overdraft facility the 15t Plaintiff ton)
from the 15 Defendant was Meant for purchase of drugs for the 15 Flaintifs
and that the Said loén was applied for buying of raw materials for fUnning
the Pharmaceutics) Company of the 1% Plaintif, PW2 stated that the ond
Deferidant detained her at Otop Ahas Folice Station, Cal.ai:»al‘ and alse
detained the Chairman of the 1% plajntife for interviéw for S«:nn‘:f: hours,
PW

FW2 said she Was not suing EFCe (2nd Defendant) for the fun of it byt that

o

said she did not make any Payment to the EFCC (ond Defendant),

the EFCC (2nd Defendant) has no business in the transaction batween har
and the 1st Defendant, Equitorial Trust Bank (now Sterling Banl: Plip), FW2
admitted that she Lnows that the 2nd Defendant has statutory duties but
that she Was not aware that the ond Defendant has statutory duties to
investigate pétitic:ns involving stealing of funds, issuing c»f dud “heques,
LS. The PW2 was shown Exhibits P6, P10, P11 and P12 at the request of
the 2nd Defendant’s Counsel and PWZ identified the‘E.\rhibi'ts as phaotocapies
of chequas Which were issued by the 15t Plaintiff but that she did not agree
that ro Payment was made on those cheques because the Flaintiffs made
PAYIMENts of aver N2i, That if the >nd Dafendant’s Counsel was saying

that no Payment was made in respect of those cheques, she PW2 was

hearing abaoyt it for the first time that the cheques wera pot honoured, The
an' D ‘c,

e
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7 Plaintiffs’ Caupsel did not Fe-examine PW2, Ha submitied that that was ‘he

' conclusion of the case for the Flaintiffs,

The 1* Defendant'e Courise] applied to open their Dizfence and leave was
granted him i conduct the CRAMINALIon-in-chjaf of DW1. The DW1 w
He sware on the Haly Bjke
in the matter DWI stated hjc

F’ort—Har.:«::urt, Fivers

a5 in
the witnese Lo, W speal the truth in testifying
Naime as Abimbzde Clumide Dare,

State, He Stated that he had worked for the 13t

living ar

Defendant: s the Regiona Credit Recovery Manager until the 1% day of
12 when he retired. That ag

Court, he was

May, 20 t the time of giving Avidence i,

& student of the Nigerian Law School, DWL testified that he

HiTs in this Suit, That they were
that he made a Written
would adap

Fnows the plai his customers, Dy Stated
an the 02/02/2010 and that he

0N behalf of the 1% Defendant iy

statement o Qath, he did m
ated the 25/09/2000 ang
1% Flaintifi, pywi
and Statement of Alcount of the 1st Plaintiff. The 15t pafan-

applied ta tender the documents through Dwi,
objected 1o the Stat

Statement on Oath
tit as his evidence-in-chjef
this case, That in the said ention 3 Citizen
Bank Chequs ¢ I the Statement of Aczount of the

identified the documents shown to him as the cheque

The Plaintiff's Counse
€Ment of Account of the 1%t p

laintiff only. The 1%
Defendant’s Counsel w

ithdrew the Statement of Account of the 1%t Flaintifr,
ated the 25/09/2000
Defendant in the sum of N

The Court then admitteqd the Citizen Bank Cheque ¢

drawn in favour of the 1 o00,000.00 in
xhibit D1, The DW1 was shown Exhibit p1 and
Exhibit P15 and he identified them as the letter of

evidence zng marked it g5 E

offer of the overdraft

e 1% Defendant ang the letter of Application far tha

ARITA /’-’/’714,4'/7/,—‘1'[5(/7.76 ASLTD, g 2 ORS, v,

—
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said averdrafy facility by the 15t Flaintiff, respectively, f’:{/ﬂ Rl
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At this _iuncture, there Was pawer QUtage 35 he 1% e

applied for ap, Idjournmen;: awing ti

Counsel iy NOt abject, The case was adjourney to the 29/1 0/2013.

With the pst Deferdant, The DWI stated that the Stateman; Of Account
| CoNsist of entiies talqn from cne af the wrdinary baol-s of the bank ang

that the SNy was Made during the tsual and ordinary ourse of tha

banl’s business, That the back wag in the Controf ang “Ustody of tha banl;,

ETB, now Sterling Bant: Fle, the ps Defendant, DW1 saig he “ompared the

Statement f Account i Question with the origina) ENtry in the bool: and
found it ¢, be correct The Plaintifs Counse| objected t the admissibility

and é'rguecl that it was
g Computer Printoyt yet the Dwy did not lay 3 Proper found

seeking t, tender jt g2 'equired by SECtion G4

of the szid Statemen: of Account of the 1st Plaintirs

ation before

2Yof the Evidence Act, 2011

and alsa that the docurment was niof acCompaniea| by 3 Certificats being g

Seiction 5K of the
Evidence'Aci:, 2011, He relied on the case of Araf v, Caby;

16 (ho
citation}. The pst Defendant's Counsel said  that the dacument Was

Pleaded the Statement of Deference and Counter Claim of the jst
Defendans and that the Flaintiffs’ did not deny it in theijr

COmputer Jenarated document as required oy

pleading. Learned

At the Statement of Account of
the 1%t Flaintif Wais beinig tenderad 3¢ aln entry ta)-

18t Defendant’s Counss| also Subirmitte th

=N rom one of the
Ordinary Laoks of the  hanks and that the pw; had lajg d proper
foundatio, for tendering it as required hy Sections &7

the Evidenca Act, ¢

N ""‘...h 4
fendants Lounsel

the inClemant Weather, The Flaintiff's

TR e atoa
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/ / on by the learned Aut“hc:r, Sabastine T, Hon, (

/;f in Nigeria, at pPage 279, In 3 Fuling delivered an the 0

/s

 Plaintiffs’ Counsel cross

withdrawing from further
constraints. That the 15t

*'Plaintif Stating that the withdraw

2006), The Law of Evndence»

2/12/2013, this Court
jection of the Flaintiffs’ Counsel and admitted the

Statement of Account of the 1% Plaintiff jn evidenice
EAhlblL D2.

overrulad the o

and marked jt as

DW1 continued with his evidence- in-chief thercafter, He testified further

dated 30/11/1998 from the 1%
Plaintiff to the 1st Defendant and pwi tendered it in evidence. The

Plaintiffs’ Caunsel did not cbject. The letter titled: “REQUEST FOR 70%
‘WAIVER OF INTEREST" dated the 30/11/1998 me
the Plaintiffs’ amended Statement of Claim was
marked as Exhibit D3,

that the 1% Defendant Pleaded a letter

tioned in paragraph 9 of
admitted in evidence and

‘The 1* Defendant’s Counsel closed his Examin

Iss-2xamined DW1 on the 17/03/2014.

DW1 under cross-ava amination explained that ° ‘portfolin” in banking terms

means the granted facility and the s=cy

urity used for Securing the facility,
that is, the collateral.

He explained further that the grant of 3 loan to a

Customer is an investmeant on the part of the PErson who granted the loan

because profit jg mads on it by the lender — the bank, in this Sg, the 1

Defendant., Dw1 further testified that the 15t Defendant wrote a letter,

Exhibit p3 infarming the 15¢ Plaintiff that the bank, ths 15t

Defendant, was
disbursement of the loan because of portralio

Defendant did nat send any other lr-'tt"l tui B

D TI.U/‘\ v,

al UI further disbyr: sement of Uﬁc.(jua“
/ O .N;

45
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/7 was due tn

the neglecr Of the Plaintiffs t

O Qgive evidence of supply and
completion of the job arder because it wag S¥pressly stated in Exhibit P1,
the conditions for disbursement of the
4 which were breached by the Plaintiffs. That the 1% pjajnt
* ; any evidence of supp

the offer letter, overdraft facility,
iff did net supply
Iy of chemicals ta make drugs oy 2vide
alrezdy supplied drugs,
irevacable domic

ne of payment
for the iIrrespective of the fact that thare was
liztion of payment from PTF. |
Dw1 explained that a draw ¢
facility) given by the

that wher, the

OWn means drawing from A loan (granted

bank. That 3 draw down js usually conditiona and

Conditions are met, the grantee would apply far him to
Withdraw some of offer lefter, has
2 of such conditions is foungd in ite
'Receipts of Evidence of Sup

Orders.” That the Plainti

ply and Payment
ffs in the Present
idence of SUpply they made t the FTF ang
-= Was in the form of receipts which the-15¢ Defendant pleadad.
id not agree that it was nat necessary ‘L'o give evidence
'SEMeNnt of the funds. That the 1** Defen

dant was aware that
the Plaintifrs completed the Jjob

by getting manay alsewhera, DW1 agreed
at  Exhibit F1, there are two meth
the loan, namely: |

thar loaking 2ds stated therein for
repayvment of

1. From contract HIOCERdS directly fram prr and,
o

<. Cash dJenerated from Comp

anv's interng) Operations,

CEUTICALS 17D, & pe
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DW1 also agreed that the 1% Flaintifi's Campany approached the Bank, 15

Defendant, to give them funds to do the job because they had rno Sufficient
funds for the job. That CONCSEING repayment of the overdraft facility from
contract proceeds directly from FTF, it was the pPTF that was supposed to
pay the 1* Defendant through the irrevacahle domiciliation of Payment into
,é the account of the 15 Plaintiff maintained by the 1% Defendant, That it was
P not in dispute that the 15t Defendant has domiciliation from PTE but that
y‘ o maney came from PTF, pwi admitted that the 1% Defendant did not
write a letter of complaint to the PTF ar that and that the 1%t Defendant
did nof-sue the PTF for the guarantee that was not met, Dwi, however,
did not agree that the 1% Defenclan_t frustrated the 1% Flaintiff in the
performance of the c.on.tract_. DW1 adrhit’ced that Exhibit Pi6 is the
Personal Guarantee Form executed by the 3 Plaintiff and Exhibit P21 js
the F’ersonél Guarantze Executad by the 2nd daimant which show that the
total amount recoverahle from the 21 and 3" Plaintiffs s limited to the
principal sum of N20million, and that the 1% Defendant gave the 1%

~

Plaintiff N5million and not NZ0million. That the 1% Defendant reserved the

right to change the nature and amount of the facility and its Uruderlying
terme and conditions and Security. DW1 admitted that the 15 Plaintiff had
paid bacl: N3,370,479.00. That the Flaintiffs wrote»»to the 1* Defendant ta
release the domiciliation documents, the 15 Defendant refused to give
them because the Plaintiffs Were awing the 1% Defendant, DW1 also
admitted that via Exhibits P4, P5 and P17, the 1% Defendant wrote to the
1* Plaintiff demanding payment of t_he loan. That the 1% Defendant also
wrate Exhibit P19, a letter, a petition to the (EFCC) 2™ Defendant Stating
in it, Fraudulent Diversion of Bank Funds by Dr. & Mrs, F'i”ﬂi;‘%?%,}
Isangedighi, dated the 15/03/2001 That in thg Course of _inves,gga‘tion, the

o
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/ r 2" Defendant checke

d thea Statement of Ac

s /
count or the 15 Defendant ang

jg noticed that the cheque to the 1% Dafendant on

1% Plaintif issued a dud

g‘ the 25/09/2000, Exhibit D1, and then ond Dafendant demanded for 3 copy
;ﬁ or the dud cheque and that the 1* Defendant gave it to the 2" Defendant.
f That when the 15t Plaintiff's Citizen Banl- cheque dated the 25/09/2000 was «
] 1ot l“n:snoured, the 1% Defendant sent to the 1% Plaintiff 3 SIip called
#/ “Returred Chegque Slip” Whereby the particulars of the cheque were

written. DW1 sajd that he dig not, however, hay

& any evidence in Court
that the slip was sen to

the Plaintiffs,
of the 1% Defendant, as at the time of hj

Was owing the 15t Defendant

DW1 stated that by the estimation

S evidence in Court, the 1% Plaintiff
aver N19p

nillicn as statéd in their Statement
of Defence already before the C

ourt. DW1 admitted that the loan of

Nomillion was given to the 1% Flaintiff in 1998 byt that he did nat know the

turn aver for 1993 O 1999 and that he did Nt also know
1% Defendant’s turn over from 1998 - 2011

1 Defendant’s
the or the 1% Dafendant’s
to 2011 when the 1% Defendant changed to

2ad the portion of Exhibit P1
and é.»:plained that the 1 pe

marlet conditions from 1993

ON pricing interest
fendant gave 3 Jdetailed an

alysis of how the
overdrart facility went to the amount st

ated, which is over N19million,

The Plaintiffs’ Counse|

stated that he was done with the Cros
of DW1, The

1%t Defendant’s Counsel said he Was not re-examining DW1.
He then applied to close the case of ¢
Counsel did not o

S-examination

la -

he 1% Defendant. The Flaintiffs’
bject. The application was

granted. The DW1 was
discharged from the Witness box,
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P on the 07/04/2014, the nd twn. 13Nt called its lone withess, LW2, Bashir

Maikano, a personnel of the 2" Defendant (EFCC) but now of blessed

memary. He adopted his statemant N cath which was before the court as

his evidence in this case. He dig ot complete his evidence-in-chicf that

date. On the pevt adjourned date, when he was to continue, the 2" ‘
Defendant’s Counsel informed the Court of the unfartunate demi Is& of DW2

¢ in a car accident,

There were ral adjournments before application to substitute the Dw2
with Mohamme:d Umar Musa, an Operative of the 2" Defendant (EFCC),
Port-Hare ourt Zonal Offic 2, because of the transfer of the Judge (mé) from
the Calabar Division of the Federal High Court. The parties’ application for
a fiat to enable me, the Judge, to travel to Calabar to continue with
hearing of the case was aranted by the Honourable Chief Judge of the

Federal High Cnurt Hon. Justice 1. N, Auta, OFF, months after the Court’s
last hearing in April, 2014. |

S0, an the (s S12/2014, the 3 [aq fendant’s Counsel moved th 12 application

to substitute the late DW2 with ancther withess wha he said was part of -

i
their investigating team in this case. The application was not opposed. The s;
Same was granted by this Court. The DW2, naw by name Mohammed .

Umar Musa, was called and he affirmed to speak the truth only in giving »

evidence. DW2 said in his evidence-in-chief that he knew Bashir Maikano
who was formerly his boss in the office and he Dw> worked under the now
late Bashir Maikano, DW? then adopted his written deposition on Oath

which he said wac deposed to on the 04/12/2014 and was before fh'b '
Court, as his evidence in the instant caze. DWo

i ARITA PHARMACEUTS, TCALELTD, 2 2 ORS, v, STERLING BANN PLC 2 4 ANOR:



paradraphs T and 9 of hig written Statement on Ozth,

touching on a petition that was made to the 2™ Dafendant (EFCC) by th'e

1* Defendant (then Equitaria) Trust Bank hyt now known as Sterling Eant:

he referred 1o facte

Flc). DW2 stated that Pursuant to the patition dated the 15/03/2007, the

2" Plaintiff was invited to the State CID, Calabar an the 22/05/2007 ¢
ANSWEr 1o the criminal allegation contained in the petition of the 1%t
Defendant against the Plaintiffs, That the »nd Plaintiff hondu;'ed the
invitation ang was afterward relzased on administrative bajl bond, pwz
said he would he able tn recognise the Petition, the Statement of the 1%
Flaintiff to the and Defendant, the pail application of the ond Flaintiff and
the bail hond, He Stated that the certified trye copy of each of the
dcu:un’ieni:s mentioned by him above were in Court. He stated that the
statement of the ond Flaintiff, his bail application and the bail bond wera all
made on the 22/05/2007 and that the three documents as well as the
petition were Pleaded. The DW2 was shown the documents and he
identified them as the documents he was referring to while testifying, The
documents were tendered in evidence. The Plaintiffs’ Councel did net
object 1o the adn'nissibi!i‘w of the petition, the haj| application and the hajl
bc»nd. The said d«:u:Urrients were admitted in evidence and the petition was
marked as Exhibit D4, the bail application was marked as Exhibit D5 anq
the bail bond was marked as Exhibit Dg,

The learned Plaintiffs’ Counsel, however, objected to the admissibi!ity of
the statement of the 2™ Plaintif on the grounds that it Was a puhlic

document which ought to have haan Properly certified byt which was nat,
In that it was not shown on the face of the dacument how much fee Wk

paid for the certification as required by the Provisions of section 104 of the

e
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authority to SUpport his objection hut on the nevt adjourna] date, beihg
11/03/2015, he Stated that he could not place hig hand on ‘the Said
authaority, He then withdrew his objection, The Court, therefore, admitted
the Certified Trye Copy of the statement of the ond Plaintiff t5 tha
2"Diafendant Mmade on the 22/05/2007 and marked it as Exhipi D7, The
! 1% and ond Defendants’ Lounsel were absent from Court, The matter was

adjourned,

At the next ad_]‘ourhed date,. being the 09/06/2015; the matter came up for
continuation of hearing, the DW2 was called tn the witnass boy and
"eminded of his Oath, The learned Counsel for the on Defendant achad
DW2 whethey apart from his written depositions in his Statement an Oatf;
and the dacuments tendered through him, he had any ather thing to te|

the Court about this case. The pw»o answered in the negative,

The 2m Defendant’s Counsel  then submitted the DW2 " for crogs-
examination. The DW2 stated under crdss-e_.\:aminatic»n that he found out
in the course of Investigation that there was an overdraf facility
transaction betweesn the Plaintiffs and the 1%t Defendant and that the
Plaintiffs diverteq the funds that they ought to have Paid for the
Uransziction they entered intg with the 1% Defendant. DW2 also stated that
the matter was stjj under investigation when the Plaintiffs rushed to Court,
DW2 also said he was an investigator and that when a petitian COmes to

- e

. . . . . G .
the Mvestigation js SENt to the Legal Department whick lools at the r«-:«‘gif,;rtﬂ aNk [VE

and qgives advice as to wWhether the Mmatter should be talen to C‘:»leift_—',i Qr<inm
. l' “'_“.\ .
R

)
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' Evidence Act, 2011, Learned Counsel said he woyld supply & 5y e

the 2™ Defendant, the 2" Defendant investigates it and that the repart ;\'(‘:.\‘?»D RUE %
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and the 1t Defendant was purely civil and 3 Contractus) Matter jn which

the 2nd Detendan has rig business ag Was sujgested by the Flaintiffs’

diverted becayse there was 5 guarantor, the FTF, in thjs matter, Dy

answered that the matter was stj| under investigatiag, and that he doag

Mot alss Loy the Meaning of “domiciliatian" as he is pat 5 banl:er, Dwz
also said g9 at the time of the diversjon he did net know how much was
diverted becayse the matter was still under investigatior when the
Plaintiffs Fushed tg Court, |

The Plaintiffs’ Counse] Submitted that he was dane with HrOEs-2vamination
of DWo, The 1% Defendant’s Counse| when askeg by the Court, saig he
had no questions for DW2, The ynd Defendant’s Counsel 3z stated that he
Was not Fe-2xamining DW?2 ang applied for pyy» to be discharged from the
Witness fge The Flaintifrs’ Counsel had no objection to that applicatiqn.
The Caurg granted the application apq discharged e DW2, The 352 was
S adiourned for adaoption of the final Written addresses of Counsel far the
Parties, This Was to be dope on the 03/12/2015 but the Plaintiﬁfs filed thejr
written address only that Same date even though the 1st Defzndant had
filed thejr final Written address on the 30/06/2015 and senved the same on
the Plaintifrs o the 01/07/2015 and the »nd Defendant served their Written

address an the Flaintifrs in July, 2015 The Plaintiffs’ Counsel apolagised to

’,»-:’ 1% 0T p /t;(:}\;\
the Court ang ¢ FAMTRs on the ather gige for the delay in filing his writ’té-;z::;‘@\\" B .,,'?,‘}\
. Pe, . . ,-"_"‘ oY . Aty "“"-_F.x‘ﬁ'
address, Ha =vplained thar he was busy at the Election Fetition Tribunz) at A M.// "’—(’3 Q(“g.\
. RS T (:‘-.' el
Abuja, thar hearings before the Election Fetition Tribunal are tu'né-b«:'unc;rl, - 225 ‘{0%{{2:»
VE e 34
hence his delay, He submitted that e had Paid his Penalty fece for defalﬁ’t‘a‘., C z( 7&»:15‘

2 . w
\_. ()6, - " (}\) . _
—— Logpp  0©
TERLING BANK Py ¢ g ANOR: SuUIT wo, FHG/CA/CS/55/2007 S




FEDEHAL NIGK C2tRT

7 in filing. Davig NPr Esq., (holding the bricf of T
L 1% Defendant and alsg, halding the briaf of C.A. Okali, Esq., for the 2nd
Defendant applied that since they were seryeq With the final Faply address
of the Flaintiffs only in Court an that ~AMe 09/06/2015, he wauld need
ancther date to =nable them study the Plaintiffs’ Paply address and file a
Feply or foints of law, if it was necessary, The l2arned Deferce Counsa|
alsa stated that the Flaintiffs’ Counsel had XPlained the resson for the

delay in filing their Reply address, so they would not ag)c for costs.

The Court EXpressed jts displeasure that after such a lang adjournment
Which a1z incjuded the Court’s long vacatian, the Plaintiffs were unable to
filz the Fzply address, byt granted the adiournment, more S0 that the 1%
and 2nd Defendants Were not Opposed to the application for & dournment,

On the 10/03/2016, the 1st Defendants Counsel, . M. Nwala, Esq.,
Submitted that they hag filed the 1st Defendant’s final written address,
dated the 30/06/2015 an the same date, that the 15t Defendant also filad a
Feply on Foints of law. He adopted the written address as their argument
0N the three Issues raised in the 1% Defendant’s Written address, He alse
Cited one additiona| Jjudlicial authority which iS not in their written address,
o support his argument on the isstie of the |aan in question not being
Statute-barreg arter six (6) years, but only after twelve (12) years hecause
itis 3 specialty debt, being a Secured debt, He cited in support the case of
Samuel Te/le Onadeko y, Union Bank of Nigeria pfc, (2006) Al
FWLR (Pt. 301) p, 1875 4 1890-1891 H-4, Ratip 7, 4 urged this |
-0Urt to dismiss the Flaintiffs claim and to grant the 1% E»(eﬁm/'lt'ﬁi\l\t‘g‘ﬂ "hue
&

Saunter clair,

..‘.'.‘ .
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‘The 2" Defendant's Counsel, C, A, Okoli, Esq.,

sibmitted that the o
ddress is dated the 07/07/2015
10/07/2015. He Submitted that t :

Defendant’s final written a and filed on the

<uri, Esq., submitted that upon

being served with the 1% Defendant's Final Written Address,

the Plaintiffs
N reply and that the Plaintiffs
ESPONSe to the
He adopted both written addre
arguments in reply to the Defendan
resclve the issyes

filed & Written addresg on thev03/12/2015, i
also filed Final written address in r Defendant’s Final
Written addre:ﬁs. 35S as the Plaintifrs’
ts” submissions. He ure

2d this Court ta
|
ir favour of the Plaintiffs and uphold the

Plaintifis’ claim,
therein,

The 1 Defendant’s Counsel

oNn points of |

adopted it 3

submitted that the 15t De
W, dated the 10/03/201¢ and filed on
$ their reply on points of |

fendant filzd & Feply
the s5ame date, He
aw and urged thic

Our of the 1% Defendant an
and grant the 15t

Court tm resolyve a)l
d to dismiss th«é_ Flaintiffs’ claim
Defandant’s counter claim. |

f the Plaintiffc Wherein the Flaintiffs
documents tendered jn &vidence by the 2™ Defandant on the grounds that

- : - ot : " N T«I/(J‘E[J T'f\'(/}\
the documents are public documents which ought to pe q;:{ NG T 98 )

”
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Ut were r validly certified, so the Court Lannat rely on them, The

learned Plaintifier Counsel argued that the -nd Defendant did nat Show
evidence o the face of the documente that any fee was Faid for the
Certification and thar Withoyt 2vVidence of Pavment of fees, the Purparted
Certification o, thi documents is not valig, He relied on the case of Tabijk :
Investment Limiteq G-T.B. Plc. (2011) 41, FWLR (Pt, 6p3)
1592, The ond Defendant’s Counse| argued that the Supreme Court has |
held that jt is fatal o the case of a Defendant Ora Plaintiff wha fails to put-

across the casa of his client by €xamining a Withess on an i3sUe or to put

the case of Oforfete , The State (2004) 14 NWLR (Pt 681 ). He
argued that assuming the 7nd Defendant’s documents WEre not to pe
looked at, there Was avidence before the Court which the ond Defendant
could rely Upcn. That the 1% Defendant’s Petition to tha 2nd Defendant
against the Flaintiffs borders on facts which have been SEt before this
Court, Which the Flaintifrs failed tn Cross-camine the 2nd Defendant’s
Witness tg PUL across thejr Lase against the 2nd Defendant about the
allegeg detantion of the Flaintiffs, o

Learned Counsel saig they were relying an Section 104 of the Evide_nce Act, Loy
2011 ty Submit that the Exhibits tendered through pyy- and admitte] and '
marked ag Exhibits D4, D5, pg and D7 are Praperly certified trye Copies for

Which 3 faa Was paid for the Certification, He Submitteg further that there ]
s 3 Presumption lFaised by the dPpearance of 5 Certified trye Capy of 9 - ]
document that the Conditions for making 3 Certified  trye copy

Properly et befare Certification of the saijg d.:n:ument, especiall};ﬂ,({ 4o o l_:
- . P . , 18" AN -iﬁ‘)'\ﬁ(?
redards the I35ue of Fayment of feeg, That Farty who wante B0 mALE 547 M A \Zt;“L(é
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issue out of whether Paymant was made for certitication of the docurnents

ought £ have raised such objection at the point the documents were beihg
tendered and that the Plaintiffs failed to da that The learned 2™
Defendant’s Counsel urged the Court to discountenance the objection of

- Well, the learn-ed Counsel for the 1% Defendant has submitted that fees
was paid for Certification of the documents sought to he tendered by them,
But there is ng evidence of such Payment and it appears that going by the
authority of the Supreme Court in the case of TabikInyestmentLimited
V. GTB Plc,, such evidence of Payment of fees for certification is fequired.

I therefore, rely on the aUthority of that case to hold that the documents
tendered by the 2n Defendant and earlier admitted and marked as Exhibit
D4, Exhibit D5, Exhibit Dg and Exhibit D7 are not in admissible form, The
said dacuments wij| not be relied on by the Court in this Judgement,

I, however, find that the case of Oforlete (supra), cited by the learned
Counsel for the 2nd Defendant is good law, It supparts the submission of
the Counsel that evidence led by the 2nd Defence Witness, DW2 ag regards
the invitation of the pywz by the 2nd Defendant for questidning only,_af'ter
the 2nd Defendant received the petition of the 1°' Defendant against the
Plaintiﬁ's, Exhibit P19, was not challenged under cross-é,\;amination and the

Court can rely onit, and I so hold. g ' ' WED TRz,
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e Plaintiffs’ complaj
that the 1% plaintife applied for an
via Exhibit P15, The 15t
overdrart facility in the sum of N2
accepted the Overdraft facility on beha
Company,

Nt against the 1%
overdraft facility from the
Defendant offered the 1% plaintir an ( |
Omillon. The 2 ang 39 prgipree

If of the 1¥Plaintiff, 5 Pharmacaytica
o enable the st Plaintiff execyte their contract with the P.T.F,
to supply drugs, The 7 Plaintiffs executed personal or individual
being Exhibit P16 and Exhibit p21. .

Defendant s

1* Defendant

and 3
Guarantee Farmes,

Defendant disbursed only

That the 1st Defendant the

Written Statement on

Oath of the ond Plaintiff
of the 2

as well as Paragraph 16
" Plaintiffs Written Statement on Oath, '

* Defendant was entitled
under the terms S

Exhibit p1, Particularly, paragraph

ut notice angd at its discretion the
ty as well

Nature and amount of the overdraft faciji

and conditions = that clayse in the offer
letter, which was duly accept

R . : o . . o /-"“::-"\‘%
that the 1 Defendant disbursed cnly N5 Instead of N2Om 90‘%\@3’ heue (};
X 2o
& e O

; *3’ SE J'T'
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debt owed the ISE'Defen.dant by the
specialty deht which does not lapse until

UPon accrual of the cause of action an

et

- The 1% Defendant also argued that the
1% Plairtiff is a after 12 vears
d is different from 2 simple deht

which usually has a life *Pan of € years fram the date the cause of
the 1% Plaintiff indebtedness to the

valid and subsisting, hence the 15 Defend

action
accrued. That I*" Defendant is still

ant’s counter claim, herein.

The 2™ Defendant denied harags

sing the 2" and 2
them to pay money to
argued that they recej
duty bound to inve

invitation of the 2

@ Plaintiffs ang farcing
the 1% Defendant or anyone else, The ond Defendant
Ved a petition from the

1*" Defendant and thay wera
stigate it hy hearing fr

om the Piaintiﬁ‘s, hence the

" Plaintiff for questioning.

ISSUES FOR DETERMINATION
I have

Carefully perused the final written ad
for the

1% Defendant and the final written
far the ond Defendant, 1 have also very
of learneqd Coun

1% ang on

dress of the [2arned Counsal

address of the lcarned Caunse

well laoked at the written address
I for the Flaintiffs in reply to the Written addresses of th
d Defendants, respectively, Furthermaore, T 3lan l::anted
Feply address On paints of law filed by the 1% Defs
Flaintifts” written address,

S

(T

at the

ndant in response to the

[n the fina written address nf the 1% Defendant, three iSSUes

letermination and the 2" Dafands

SuUes for determinath:»n.

ntin the final written address raised
On their part, the p| d

aintiffs in thejr Peply ad
dised two issyes

\)
he 1% Defend "A‘\I
=5 Tor determination i Fesponse to the 13 'erendantging -
> Fns 7S B amn
.,’..
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Written address ang also two issues for determination in Fesponse to the
~nd

- Defer;dant’s final written address.

In my humble view, from the synthesis of the ISSURS put forth for
Jetermination by the three Counsel in this Case, there are fayr isSues
which call for the determination of the Court, herein. They are as follows:
1. Whether the 1% Defendant breached the averdrart racility contract
between the 1% Defendant and the 1% Plaintiff and that the Plaintiffs
are thereby exonerated from repayment of the amaynt of NEmillion
advanced to the 13 Flaintiff by the 15t Defendant.

2. Whether the 1* Plaintiff i no langer indebted tn the 1% Defendant
because the debt has lasted for mare than ¢ years.

3. Whether the 1ot and 2™ Defendants are liable in Damages to the
Plaintiffs,

4. Whether the 1st Defendant is entitied to the Peliefs sought in jts
counter claim,

wverdraft facility in the sum of N20m (Twenty Million Naira on/bég\\%ee
" RANE

5 ARITA P/-[—'l/?/‘ZLICEU/TOMS LD, & 205 1 o TERLING BanK prc & 1 ANOR:

7). See Exhibit pis, The 1% Defendant offered the 1% Plaingiff - ETY
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Exhibit P1. See PAragraph & of the Amended Statement of Claim ang

paragraph 4 of the ond Plaintiff's Witnese Statement on Oath zg wall as
paragraph 5 of the 3 Plaintiff's Witness Statement on Qath, all filed on
the 05/03/2017 and Raragraphs 2 and 3 of the 1% Defendznt’s Amended
Statement of Defence ﬁlled on the 02/03/2010. The Plaintiffs accepted the
‘overdraft facility angd Signed the documents and there was therefore

The partieg are all agreed that the 1 Defendant disbursad only N-Smﬂlion
out of the N20million offered and refused to disburse any further funds
from the Femaining N1 Smillion of the overdraft facility.,

The Plaintiffs felt disappointed and aggrieved. They wrote 3 letter of

complaint aboyt the non-disbursement of further funds from the overdraft |
facility vide Exhibit po dated the 10/07/1998, The 1 Dér‘endant did not
give any Pesitive response. Rather the 15t Defendant wrote a letter to the
1% Plaintirf, Exhibit P3 dated the 10/07/193g, stating that the 1% Defendant
has withdrawn from further disbursement of the rernaining funds as earliar
agreed, an grounds of portfolio Constraints, -

The 1* Defendant Justified  thejr action of Withdrawal of further

disbursement of the overdraft facility based On paragraph 1 at page 3 of
Exhibit p1 Which states that: ' '

1t is the pank’s Policy o roy oy 13501ities rrom time o time jn the light

of Shanging market conditions. The bank resenes tha Haht fo .
. . ] . . . N TAr ~ . fe
Chanae at AU without nogjse and at its discration the, Q@?Zfrg e G
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313 amount of 1acilitt as wall as the unaeriving terms and conditiope

and security arrangament.

The 1 Defendant argued that by the ahove quoted clause, the parties had o
agreed, vide the Exhibit p1 (_'thé overdraft facility contract), that the 1t
Defendant is at liberty, at its discretion to disburse Jess than the agreed
N20million overdraft facﬂity. That by disbursing NSm, only, out of the

| N20m, the 1%t Defehdant did not breach the said contract,

On their part, the Plaintiffs argued that that clause at page 3 of Exhibit p1 |
Never permitted the 15t Defendant to withdraw from the contract
agresment. That it only permitted the 15 Defendant to change the “nature”
and “amount” of N20m to another amount and gt to ihclu.de_th_e change
in nature and amount of an already drawn down NSm. That the Iét‘cer of
withdrawal, Exhihit F3, from the 1% Defendant to the Plaintiffs was never
contemplated by the parties. That by the definition of ‘change’ in Websters’
Collegiate Dictionary, 1999, “change” means “madification” ahd that at
page 1025 of the.B!ack’s Law Dictionary, §* Edition, “modification” is
defined as a change to something, an alte'ratioﬁn. That change or
madification to something does not mear withdrawal from the contract
which had 180 days tencr and was breached before the expiration of the
180 days. That the 1% Defendant withdrew from the contract even when
Ex'hibit P1 never gave any of the parties the rght to withdraw from the
contract. That there is no clause permitting any of the parties to determine
the contract within the tenor as the Defendant did. That parties are bound
by the terms and conditions of the contract and a Court has no power to

import  extraneoys terms into it. He relied on the case of K.

dy e
AN Y |
WRITA PHARMACELITICALS (71, & 2 ORE, v, STERLING BWK PLC 2 1 ANOR: SUIT NO. Hﬂ.‘/fAjg;’S/:J/_/JB/
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In his reply
. address, the

=Cl Maintained that Exhibit P1
the 18t Defendant to dj

mount at gy different firc

om the facility
amount of NZOmiHi(:»n, hence

€ the 1%t Defendant Was not jn
Contract, - ‘

ave the discretion to

definitions of “change” a5 “mocliﬁcation”
it means that t

and it gives the ;s

alteration,

N"as “change” or
he clayse at p

Defendant the power
of the facility
as well a5

age 3 of Ex
to madify and
(note, rot the amount of the facility not et drawn)
the underlying tar

This Clause js

hibit p1 jg Very broad -

or alter the nature
amaount

SecCurity arrangement.
It includes 3 change
&0 days

ging and dare say,
the tengr of the contra
SVEN by the psi

alteratjon in
Period,
that,

or

ct from to some Shorter

Defendant, and withogt € to the Plaintiffs at
cnor” listed at Page one of the overdraft facility
€ “terms and conditions”.

Notic

In the result, I find that the 1%t Cted within the
agreement binding the

ndant and the Plaingifr
f the agreement vige Es

hibit py and wj

1¥ Defe
Nature, amount and tenor ¢
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from further dishursement of the overdraft facility of N20m after the initial
draw dawn of N5m and I so hold. The 1%t Defendant did not breach the
overdraft facility contract between itself ang the 1% Plaintiff, The parties

are bound by the terms and conditions of the contract between therm, See

the case of Kayode Ventures v. Hon, Minister of FCT (supra).

Furthermaore, it appears that throughout the period of the transaction
between the 1% Defendant and the Pléintiffs, the Plaintiffs acknowledged
that they owed the 1% Defendant the sum of N5million which they had
withdrawn from the overdraft facility. The Plaintiffs axpressad cagerness to
"SPay the said MN5m to the 1 Defendant. See paragraph 6 of the
- Statement of Claim, paragraph 6 of the Witness Statement or Oath of the
2" Plaintiff and paragraph 5 of the Written Witness Statement on Oath of
the 3" Plaintiff. See also Exhibit P8 dated 29/01/1999 which shows
evidence that the 15t Plaintiff requested for 3 70%, interest waiver on their
outstanding facility and the 1** Defendant was willing to discuss the matter
with the Plaintiffs on the cendition that the 1% Plaintiff would first pay off
- the principal sym of h4,574,290.38 (Four Million, Five Hundred and
Seventy-Four Thousand, Two Hundred and Ninety Naira, Thiﬁy-Eight
-kobo) as promised by‘ the Plaintiffs. See also Exhibit P18 where the 1
Plaintiff wrote to the 1% Defendant on the 27/8/1993 asking for &0%

waiver of interest,

After repeated demands by the 1% Defendant for the 15 Plaintiff to pay up
the loan of N5m and accrued interest, including the letter of demand dated
“the 20/5/1992, Exhibit P4 ang failure of the Plaintiffs to pay up the debt

j ECULeC Q2 ar crstandi ! 21/07/198
the parties exeryted a Memorandum of Unde standing on the 21/ L:’; / 1\;\2‘5 TRUR ?’}\
_-\ § Y

A
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Exhibit F14, wharein the loan rep

dyment agreement was made. It was
agreed vide Exhibit F14 that the 1%

Plaintiff was indebted to the 1% | '{:
Defendant and had ap

plied for interest waiver whi
approved on the condition that the 1%t
concessionary out of which NIm had be
would pay Nim upon execution o
(MOU) and the balance

ch the 1% Defendant
Plaintiff  would pay NS5m as

€n paid. That the 1t Defendant '

of the Memorandum of Understanding
of N3m to be repaid in 12
schedule to the Mcmorandum That the 1%
01/07/199¢

months as per the

Defendant shall from the
2 until liguidation pay mt~:~~t of 21% Per annum and the
outstanding sum then due shall become payable en-bloc with interest
chargeable from the datz ¢

..

of default at the market interest rate,

The Plaintiffs, howpver did nnt comply with the
not pay

~ Exhibit

paymient terms as 'they did
mber 31%, 2000. Now, the

Plaintiff shows that as at
Dcwndant M19,199, 1680.52,

down between lanuary, 2000 and Daca

D2, the Statement of Account of the 1%
31/05/2006 the 1% Flaintiff owed the 1%t

The Plaintiffs issyed some cheques in nonou: of thc 12 Defendant in

attempt to repay the deht between 1999 and 2000 but that came to no
avail. | '

In essence, therefore, the 1% Defandant naver breached the overdraft
facility agreement with the 1% Plaintif, -

Issue Qne (1) ‘is resolved in favour of the 1% Defendant and I so hold.

“ RITA FHARNACEUTICALS 1 220850, 5 TERLING BANK PLE 2 1 ANOR,
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ISSUE 2: Whether the 1% Plaintiff js no longer indebted to the 1
Defendant because the debt has lasted for more than 6 years |

At paragraph 20 of the Statement of Claim, the Plaintiffs aver that the 1%
Plaintiff is not indebted to the 13t Defendant as the alleged debt has fasted
for more than g years, |

At paragraph 22(a) of the Statement of Claim, the Plaintiffs claim a

declaratow relief as follows:

A Declaration that the Plaintiffs are not indebted tn the 1% Defendant
in that the debt is Statute-barred.

Similarly, at Paragraph 20 of the Witness Staterment on Qath of the ond
Flaintiff, he leads evidence to the effect that the 1%t .Plaintiff is not indebted
to the 1t Defendant as the “purported” debt has lastad for mare than o
Years. The same deposition js repeated at Raragraph 1¢ of the 3" Plaintiff's
Written Stétement on Oath, |

During Cross-examinaticn of PW2 on the 03/07/2013, the PW2 stated that
the Plaintiffs have reasan for saying that the 13 Plaintiff doas not Owe the

s
\\l\

ot - /",‘.‘{3 T[.’U’\ N
that she was ngt In a position to tel| the Court whether the 1° Derend;:;}{qlb‘i N

AN iy
e ~ St H HOdg p (4/ ‘ ™, 0“;\61‘. X
Can still collect that debt from the 13 Flaintifr, 4O PANK %‘E'iz“&i-;é 3 6
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The Plaintiffs’ Counsel wha ought to know whether the 1% Defendant can
still collect the debt from the 1% Plaintiff or whether the debt is statute-
barred did not pursus that line of argument at all.

On the ather hand, the 1% Defendant’s Counsel went a long way to show
that the debt owed the 1 Defendant by the 1% Plaintiff has not lapsad and
Is not statute-barred after 6 years as if it were a simple debt. The learned
Counszl in the 1% Defendant’s Final Wr itten Address, submitted that the
debt owed by the 1% Plaintiff is a secured specialty debt with a a validity |
period of 12 years from the date when the cause of action accrued. He
argued that an ordinary simple debt would he caught up by the limitation |
law if it was not commenced within g years of accrual of cause of action 3
but a specialty debt will be 'statute-barre_d if action for its recovery is not
commenced within 12 years of accrual of cause of éction He relied on the

definition of & simplz contract debt given in the Black’s Law Dictionary, 6™

Edition, page 404, as a Contract upon Common Law, upon which the ' |
obligation arises neither ascertained b y matter of record nor by |
deed or instrument but by mere oral evidence or by hotes
unsealed. - .

At the same page 404 of the said Black’s Law Dictic onary, a secured debt is

defined as a "Debt secured by collateral; example by mortgage,
securities, deed, etc,”

Learned Counsel submittad further that at page 1398 of the Black's Law
Dictionary, spedialty debt is defined as:

—
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| the present case the parties agree from their plzadings Shd fe <tm13:7 5
at the overdraft facility in question was granted to the 1% Plaintiff by the
" 1% Defendant as per Exhibit P1, the offer l=tber which was duly acc

by the Plaintiffs. At page 2 of Exhibit P1, the parties agread that the debt
would be secured as follows:

1. All Asszts Dezbenture on Company’s ass=ts valued at H52m Exhibit

P20.

2. Personal Guarantez of the Company’s Managing Director and Vice

Chairman supported by Statement of Personal. Nthurth ~ Exhibit
P16, P21, respectively.

3. Receipt of duly confirmed domiciliation of paymmt ngEPmt‘nt from
Petroleum (Spcudl) Trust Fund, Exhibit P2.

Learned Counsel submitted that Evhibit P20 - Deed of Al As ets
Debenture acknowladged that a debt is due from tlu~ 1% Plaintiff to the 1%

Defendant. That this confirmed that the debt is a specialty  debt,

-particularly as the Exhibit P20 was giVen as Security for the payment’ Qf the
dabt. He referred to pages 730 -731 of CHITTY ON CONTRACTS, GENERAL
PRINCIPLES, 23 Edition, whers the period of Jlimitation for specialty

contract is stated to be 12 years, That no action upon a specialty can be
brought after the =xpiration of twelve (12) y=ars from the date on which

the cause of action accrued.
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"Lﬁamwd Counsel submitted that causs of dCt!Un acorues upon demand for

—_—

the cause of action had accr uzd, time will not stop running with the

exception that if the Defendant makzs an admissicon during the nzgotiation

and fails to fulfil the admission, the admission made during that
negotiation will be recognis=d as revalidating the cause of action. He relied
on the cases of Kolo v. FBN Plc (2003) 3 NWLR (Pt 806) 216 at
220, Paragraphs H-G and pages 232-233, Ratio 3; and Ibeto
Cement Company Limited v. AG. Federation (2008) 1 NWLR (Pt.
1069) 470 at 501 paragraphs D-F, Ratio 8 at page 479.

It was the submission of Counsel that the unchallenged averment of the 1%
Defendant at paragraph 13 of the Amended Statement of Defence shows
that after ‘the PlaintifTs reczived the 1% Defendant's demand l=tter, Exhibit
P5, dated the 06/01/2001, the Plaintifis again admitted the dabt severally
and made unfulfilled promises to pay until 2005.

That by the law of pleadings, paragraph 13 having not bt:&*l’l denied by the
Plaintiffs is desmed admitted and the facts therein also remain established.
Learned Counsel relied on the case of Olowoofoyeku v. Olowoofoyeku
(2011) 1 NWLR (Pt 1227) 177 at 202 Paragraphs D-F, Ratio 11.
That given the circumstances of this case wheréby the Citizen’s Bank
cheque, Exhibit D1 dated 25/9/2000 which the 1% Plaintiff issued the i
Defendant was nat paid until it e\'pir@d after 6 months on 24/03/2001, it is
established that the causz of action, herein arose on e 05/05/2 /QS,a

n Tﬁ’U
not earlier. | //j ?\E £ 5 0\
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jreco\/ew action earlier W|th the acknowledgment and promise to pay by

| the Plaintiffs before a demand letter, hence Exhibit F17. He cited in aid the

case of UBA Plc v. BTC Industries (2007) ALL FWLR (Pt. 352) 1615

at 1665 A-E. That the cause of action was activated after Exhibit P17 —

~ final demand for payment, dated the 05/05/2005 and that it was on the
basis of that letter that the cause of action arose whereas the Plaintiffs
filed this Suit on the 06/06/2007.

At paragraph 16 of the Amendad Statement of Claini, the Plaintiffs stated
that the 1% Defendant again demanded the sum of N15,175,020.02. The
Plaintiffs did not give particulars of their allagatic:h thé’t thé overdraft

facility had lasted for over six years and so the Plaintiffs were no Idnger
obligated to pay the loan. Learned Counsel for the Plaintiffs also appeared
not to be interested in establishing that the Cth-'Idlaf'L facility contract
between the 1% Plaintiff and the 1% Defendant had become statute-harred.
The 1% Defendant has denied that the Ioén is statute-barred in paragraphs
15j and 17 of the Amended Statement of Defence. The 1% Defendant’s

Counsel in his written address cited copicus authorities and showed that

the overdraft facility contract, Exhibit P1, between the 1% Plaintiff znd the

1% Defendant is & specialty debt contract which has a life span of twelve
years from the date the cause of action accrued, which he gave as the
05/05/2005, in the instant case.

This Court is satisfied that the overdraft facility contract is a specialty debt
- contract which has a life span of twelve (12) y=ars from the date the cause
of action accrued, which in this case was an the 05/05/2005.

FEBERAL HIGH wuml

~‘Learned Counsel submitted that it would have been tunreasonanle - ﬁ""‘"
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. therefore, find and he :ld that the debt owed the 15 " Defenda
‘Plamtf‘fﬁ is current, valid and enfor ceable,

Issue Two is resalved in favour of the 1 Defendant.

ISSUE 3: Whether the 1 and 2" Defendants are liable to pay
damages to the Plaintiffs.

The Plaintiffs alleged that the 1% Defendant breached the overdraft facility
contract and the 1% Defendant is thersfore liable for breach of the
agreement  and  liable to  damages. He | relizd on the case of
.Intercontinental Bank Plc v. Zumator Engineering Company
Limited (2010) ALL FWLR (Pt. 519) 1121 at 1137, where it was helg
that damages are awarded in an action for breach of contract anly if there
i5 @ wrong committed.

In paragraph 22 of the Amended Statement of o “laim, the Flaintifis stateg

what it lost as regards three lines of pharmaczutical business frop,
December, 1999 to February, 2000 armUntmg to M96,666, 566,00, The

Plaintiffs also asled for general damages in the sum 00million.

This Court has, however, determined issuz No. 1 in favoui of the 1%

Defendant to the effect that the 1% Defendant is not in breach of the
averdraft fac ility contract between the 1% Def mdnnL and the 1* Plaintiff. It
implies that the 1% Defendant is nat, therefore, h.’l“r—‘ to pay damages (¢

the Flaintiffs for breach of contract as there was no such situation,

']5:,.

{
i
3
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*AS regards the question whether the 2™ Defendant is liable to pay
v , -

amages to the 2" and 3™ Plaintiffs, it is the claim of the Flaintiffs that the

¢ 2" Defendant at the behast of the 1% Defendant arrested and detained the

2" and 3" Plaintiffs for a matter that is purely contractual batwzen a bank: b

and its customer, That the 2™ Defendant has no right or powsr to enforce

L8659 HOIM Y034

d=bt repayment in a contractual matter inv«:»lvi'ng a Bank and its Customer,

See paragraphs 17 and 22(a), (c) and (d) of the Amended Stat=ment of

Claim.

i
By
i
N
-
N

In the Written Address of the Plaintiffs in reply to the 2™ Defendant’s Final

Written Address, learned Counszl for the Plaintiffs argued that though the

T R

S e

2" and 2 Plaintiffs are not the Guarantars of the overdraft facility offered
to the 1% Plaintiff by the 1% Defendant, the 2™ Defendant arrested and

detainad the 2™ and 3 Plaintiffs on the 22/05/2007 far hours before

releasing them. At paragraph 17 of the Written Statement an Oath of the

SR e

2" Plaintiff, it is averred that the 2™ Defendant at the behest of the 1

Defendant arrested and detained the 2" and 3" Plaintiffs for a matter that

is purely contractual betweaen a bank: and its customer, At paragraph 21 of

the said Written Statement on Oath of the 2™ Plaintiff, it is statzd that the L
2" Defendant has no right or powsr to enforce debt repayment in a 1
contractual matter involving a Banl: and its Customer, Ses also paragraphs

3 and 17 of the 3™ Plaintiff's Written Statzment on Oath.

The Plaintiffs, therefore, at paragraph 22 of the Amended Statement of
Claim seek declaratory and injunctive reli=fs against the Defendants as well - i

“as damages. | | - | B ]
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araph 2 of the Statement of Defence of the 2™ Defendant filed on

the 19/06/2008, the 2™ Dzfendant admitted paragraphs 1, 2, 3, and 4 of
the Statement of Claim but did net admit averments in the paragraphs of |
the respective Statements on Oath of the 2™ and 3™ Plaintiffs, and put the
Plaintiffs to the strictest proaf of those facts as they were events that took
place betwzen the Plaintiffs and the 1 Defendant which arz not within the §
- knowledge of the 2" Defendant.
At paragraph 2 of the 2" Defendant's Statemant of Defence, the ond
Defendant denies paragraph 15 of the Statement of Claim, which is now
paragraph 17 in the Amended Statemant of Claim. In further answer to the
said paragraph, the 2™ Defandant averred that the ™ Defendant is a law
enforcement agency of the Federal Fepublic of Nigeria established by an
Act of the Naticnal Assembly, being the Economic and Financial Crimes
Comimission  (Establishment) Act, 2004. That the 2" Defendant is
empowered  with  all statutory powers to conduct investigation and
examination into all reportad cases of economic and financial crinies with &
view to identifying individuals, corporate bodies and groups  involved
therein, That the Z”d Defendant is also saddled with the statutc Ty
responsibility of being the coordinating agency for the enfnrcemént of the
provisions of the Failed Banks (Pecovery of D‘"L’Eb) and Financial
Malpractices in Banks Act, as amended. That the 2™ Defendant, pursuant
o its statutory duty, received & petition dated the 1'3/0”’/"’UU/ from the 1%
Defendant wherzin a case of fraudulent diversion of Bank funds was
reported against the Plaintiffs. That the 2™ Defendant through its agents in
Calabar, following the procedure of investigation, invitzd the 2" Plaintiff to
the Statz Criminal Investigation prarcmt.nt, Calnbal on the __/Of/ 2007

\
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¥ Defendant. That the 2™ Plaintiif came o mest the agents of the 27

-—

Defendant whercupan he voluntesrad his statement and was subsequently

released on bail within a few hours,

The 2" Defendant denied the éllega’cion that the matter under
investigation was just contractual between a Banler and its Custonier and
maintained that it was a matter within the contemplation of the Economic
and Financial Crimes Commission Act, which is the mandate of the 2"
Defendant. The 2™ Defendant averred that the 2" Plainti¥ was not
unlawfully arrested and was not detained even though he was suspected
of having committed an offence. The 2™ Defendant stated as false the
allegation that the 2™ Defendant was being used as a debt collector and
also denied the paragraphs of the Plaintifis’ Amended Statement of Claim

where it is stated that the Plaintiffs are entitled to the declaratory and

.

injunctive reliefs as well as the damages sought by them from the

Defendants.

In the Final Written Address of Counsel for the 2 Defendant, it was
submitted by learned Counsel for the 2™ Defendant that there is nothing in
the evidence of the Plaintiffs to show that the 1% 2" and 2 Plaintifis were
detained or arrested or viclated in ar"iy form by the 2 Defendant. That the

Plaintiffs only made  unsubstantiated claims of unlawful detention and

R e e ey e SR

arrest and that the 2"Dsfandant was being used as an agent for the

recavary of the debt owed the 1% Defendant by the 1% Plaintiff. That

during cross-examination by the 2™ Defendant’s Counsel, the 2™ Flaintiff

e e e

(PW1) admitted that he was invited to a Police Station in Calabar w:}:ﬁ;m;,\
@ <

7 Q.‘J Cl .-
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made his statement in response to the petition of the 1% Defendant and |
that he was relcased on bail to go home on the same date. The learned

Counsel relied on Exhipits D4, D5, D¢, and D7. The learned Counsel

submitted that the claim of the 3% Plaintiff that she was detained by

officers of the ~nd Defendant is complate falsehood as the 3% Plaintiff had

Yrovey
13109 yay Y3034

"~

no interaction with the 2™ pefendant whatsoever and that the 3" Plaintiff's

allegation was motivated by gold-digging concerns.

Learned Counsel maintained that statutorily, the 2™ Defendant s
empowered to ehfa::r'ce the provisions of the EFCC (Establishment) Act,
2004, the Miscellaneoys Offences Act, the Advance Fee Fraud Act, the
Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act, and all other laws as specified.
He referred to sections 6, 7, and 1+ of the EFCC (Establishment) Act, 2004.
He submitted that section 46 of the EFCC Act covers offences alleged
against the Plaintiffs in the 1 Defendant’s pétition and that by virtue of

S&ction 6(h) of the EFCC Act, the 2™ Defendant was bound to investigate

such reported case and by inviting the 2™Plaintiff for interview in respect
of the petition did not amount to a violation of the rights of the Plaintiffs by
the 2™ Defendant. He argusd that in any case, just like the Police and all
other law enforcement organizations, the 2" Defepdant is émpowered by
the Constitution tn tamper with the rights of pentsons in the course of
enforcement of the »law, But that in the present case, the rights of the
Plaintiffs were nat violated in any form. He relied on Chapter IV and
section 35 of the Constitution of the Federal Republic of Nigeria, 1999, as
amended and the case of Ehwenugo v. FRN (2001) 6 NWLR (Pt. 708)

171 at 185, | T
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The pnd Deferdant’s Counse canvassed that the Plaintifie  had no

justification for Instituting this actior Zg3inzt the ond Defendant and that jt

Was a mere ploy to yse thc ROWErs of this Court for their

He described the action as ve. “atious, frivalous ang abuse of Court process,

He relied on the Case of Dingyadi v, INEC (2010) 11 ~ 15 MJISC 131
c-D. o - | ‘

OWN amuserment,

In the Plaintiffs final written addres

(]

in reply to the 27 pa fendant’s written
address, learned Counsel for the Flaintiffs dwelt extensively
inadmissibility of the nd Defendant’

on the
s Exhibits D4 - p7 and urged the Covirt
W disregard the said Exhibits and refyse to rely on therm.
Judgement, 1 upheld the learned Counsel’s ar
maintain that E,‘hlbltb D4, D5, Dg, and D7 ar
nat be used by this Court. See the casce
GTB Plc, (2011), supra, and se.

(73]

Earlier in this
gunient on this jssye and I
2 inadmissible at aw and will
of Tabik 1n vestment Limited v.

ctions 102 and 104 of the evidence Act, o
2011 as well as section 318(h) of the Constitution of thea Feder
of Nigeri 3, 199935 amended and section 1

al Republic |
af the Interpretation Act, CAP,

121, Laws of ke Federation of Nigeria, 2004,

Furthermore, on the issuz of this Suit being an abuse of Court Process
raised by the ond Defendant in their Defence, learned Counsel for the

Plaintiffs submitted that bringing in the 2n Defendant in this Suit does not

amount to abuse of Court process becsyse 2 the 2™ Defendant had na

business investigating the e and 3" Blaintiffs on allegations which deal

with civil matters,

RESOLUTION OF ISSUE 3
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| Well, T have reviewed the Statements on Oath of the 2" and 31 Plaintiffs

and the answers given by them under ross-examination and 1 am of the

view that the Plaintiffs have failed to place any material before the Court to
show that the 2nd Defendant was being used as debt repayment agent by
the 1* Defendant to force the Plaintiffs to repay the debt owed the 15
Defendant. For example, apart from merely stating so, the Plaintiffs did not
give the particulars of their harassment by the officers of the 2nd
Defendant. As a matter of fact, during “ross-examination, the 2"Plaintiff
stated that he was invited to a Police Station and interviewed by an officer
of the 2™ Defendant for haurs and was Jater released. The 2™ Plaintiff also
admitted that the 2 Defendant did not avtort money from him. The 27
Defendant said they never had any encounter with the 3" Plaintiff, The 3"
Plaintiff, however, led evidence ta the effect that she was invited by the 2
Defendant and detained and questioned at a Police Station for hours
before she was allowed to go home. She, however, under Cross-
evamination, admitted that the o Defendant did nat extort money fron

her or forced her to give money to the 15 Plaintiff or anybody else, ‘

On the other hand, it is not in doubt that the 2 Defendant as a law
enforcement agency is constitutionally and stathtorily empowered to
investigate economic and financial crimes reported to jt. See sections 6, 7,
14 and 46 of the EFCC Act. In the course of investigating reported cases of
economic and financia crimes, the 2" Defendant is embowered under
section 35(1), (o), (4) and (5) of the 1999 Constitution to invite persons
suspected of having committed the offence(s) for questioning and this may

even invalve arrest and datention for up to one or two days depending on

htad)
e
[
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3 the location the SUspect is held and Provimity to & Court of cUmpeh:tl;.

Jumdlrtmn See the case of Fawehinmi v, 1Gp (2002) 8 NWiLR (Pt | :‘
67) 606 &t 679 F-G, the S upreme Court held, per kalgo, JSC, thus: : ﬁ

~In ol ProZeedings. im estiaation js harah NECessary but in crimina/

Froce2dings where alleaations of crime are made, there is the neeq

Lo show that there s SUITICI2NE &) idence Lo prosecute and this may- ‘ ,

mohe guastic ang. arrest and even detention. whera necessary. or

the parson s)imohes,

Similarly, in the case of Ekwenugo v. FRN (2001) 6 NWLR (pt. 708)
171 at 185, the Court held that: .

No citizens freadom or fiberty is aphsalyts, 3 Jtizens right or liberty
mav be jmpajred lemporally in order to prevent him rrom committing
an offence or if there IS reasonaple susp/uon that he /7.3«, committed

an offence,

In the case in hand, 'the nd Defendant saig they invited the ond Plaintiff
only for questioning in relatian to the 19 Defendant’s petition for a few
-hours after which he was released. 1 locked at the:‘lSt Defendant’s' petition

to the 2™ Defendant and the title reads:
FRAUDULENT DIVERSION OF BANE FUNDS BY DR. & MRS. FRANCIS

LIMITED. o
On the face of the petition, the allegations against the Plaintiffs border on

-alleqation: of fraud and €CoNOMIC sabotac ge. The 2nd efendant was

1 ARITA PHARA. WCEUTICU S LT, 2 S ORE v STERLING 54/1//\"/%9 & 1 ANOR:
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things. Under Cross-examination, the 2™ Plaintiff admitted that where

there are serious allzgations of fraug reported to the 2" Defendant such as

vk

the 1% Defendant’s petition ag2INst the Flaintiffs in this case, it would be

< -

Vitd¥ay
¢

L4003 19 Wy

necessary to hear the story of those alleged or suspected to have

£

=3

committed the offence.

In the result, the 2nd Defendant was right and was acting within the ambit
of the law to have invited the 2" Plaintiff (and perhaps the 3 Plaintiff) for -

questioning and I so haold. See the case of Fawehinmi v, IGP (supra)

Similarly, the 1% Defendant was fight to have reported the cass to the o0
Defendant when the 15t Defendant suspected that the Plaintiffs diverted
the funds which they could have us=d ta pay back the debt they owed the | |
1% Defendant. See the case of Ezeadukwa v, Maduka (1997) 8 NWLR |
(Pt. 518) 635 at 677 B-C, the Court of Appeal held that: liability does

not attach to a private citizen who merely names a suspect.”

Accordingly, considering the Wtality of the evidence placed before this
Court by the parties, I find that the 1% and 2™ Defendants are not liable to
~Pay any damages to the Plaintiffs and so hold. ' |

Issue Na. 2 s alsa determined in favour of the Defendants.

ISSUE 4: Whether the 1% Defendant is entitled to the reliefs
sought as stated in the Amended Statement of Defence and

Counter Claim.

S‘f_’ P.ANK/_ .

e

$
ARITA PHARMNACRUTT LS | TD. & 2 ORS. v, STERLING EANK FLC & 1 ANOR: SUIT NO. FHC)@(Q‘?;(&'/JOO?
¥




the 1% Plaintiff and the 1% Defendant, See Exhibit P1 and paragrapl‘; 4 of
the Amended Statement of Claim and paragraph 4 of the 2™ Plaintiff's
Written Statement on Qath and paragraph + of the Written Statement on
Oath of the 3™ Plaintiff. See also paragraph 3 of the Amended Statement
of Defence and Counter Claim of the 1% Defendant.

By the same Exhibit P1, the 1% Defendant offered an overdraft facility to
the 1% Plaintiff in the sum of N20m. The 1% Defendant, however, disbursed
the sum of M5m only and did not dishurse further funds in respect of the
averdraft facility, stating the reasons for that to be portfolic constraints.
At page 3 of the Exhibit P1, the offer letter, it is stated at paragraph 1 of
page 3 thereof, as a condition, that: It is the. bank’s policy to review
facilities from time to time in the light of changing market
conditions. The bank reserves the right to change at any time
without notice and at its discretion the nature and amount of the
facility as well as the underlying terms arnd conditions and
security arrangement.

This Court has already held under Issue 1 that: .

1. The overdraft facility contract was not breached by the 1% Defendant
when it disbursed only N5million cut of the K20million agreed upon
basad on the above quoted condition in the cnntla?tdacumﬂn
Exhibit P1, ;A
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2. This Court has also held under Issue 2 of this Judgement that the

averdraft fé-:ility contract between the 19 Flaintif and the 1%
Defendant as regards the amount of NSrmillion alre ady disbursed o
the 1% Plaintiff by the 1% Defendant is still current and enforceakle
becausze it is & specialty contract, which has a lif Span of 12 years

from the date the cause of action acarued.

The overdraft facility contract was secured as follows:
1. All Azzets Debenture on Company’s asseiz valued at KE2million -
Exhibit P20. |

2. Personal Guarantee of the Company's Managing Director and Vice
Chairman supported by a staterent of Parsonal Net Weorth — Exhibits

P16 and P21, respectively.

2. Peceipt of duly confirmed damiciliation of payment agreemeant from

Petroleurn Special Trust Fund — Exhibit P2.

f

It has been established by the 1% Defendant in his written addr 2cs that the
Plaintiffe have admitted paragraph 13 of the 1% Defendants Amended
Statement of Defence/Counter Claim wherein it is sfated that
LIn further answer thereof, the 1% Defendant avers that Uporn
receipt of the said letter, the Plaintiffs opened up fresh negotiations

with the 1% Defendant on when to pay the money which promises

)

GHET

i
'

they failed to fulfil until 2005 when the 1% Defendant wrobe i :H‘\\

letter of demand.
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Learned Counsel far the 1% Defendant submitted that facts admitted nead
no rurther proof apd facts not denied by the Oppcnent in the pleadings are

deemed  admitbed. He relied on the case of 0/0Woofoyeku V.

Olowoofoyeku (2011) 1 NwLR (pt. 202) Paragraphs D-F ratip 17,

Itis clear from the farts of the case that the 1% Plaintiff acknowledged jts
indabtedness to the 1% Dsfendant to the tune of N5million with the interest

that was aceruing over the period. The 19 Plaintiff also desired tg pay back

the debt and issuad cheques including post-dated cheques some of which
Were not honoured. The 1* Defendant made  severa] demands for
repayment of the deht including via Exhibit P4, P5 and P17.

Even when the overdraft facility expired and the Plaintiffs failed tn péy, by
Exhibit P14, titlad "Memorandum of Understanding” executed on the

21/7/1999, the parties agreed that the debt will be paid by instalments by |

Spreading payments up to the 31/12/2000. The Plaintiffs failed to meet up

with that payment schedule. The 15 Dafendant wrote reminders hy way of

letters dated the 06/01/2001, (Exhibit P5) and 05/05/2005, (Exhibit p17y,
‘This Court has already held that the debht owed the 1% Defendant by the 15?
- Plaintiff is current ang enforceable, | o

Moreover, the 2nd and 3" Plaintiffs guaranteed the overdrart facility ang
stated that they are liable for as long as the debt is owed, See paragraph 3
Page 1 of Exhibits P16 ang P21, the Personal Guarantee Form executed by
the 3" and 2 Plaintiffs, fespectively. The wording of paragraph 3, page 1
of Exhibit_P16 and P21, respectively is clear. The said paragraphs state:

This  Guarantee shall not pe considered as Satisriad by an" >

intermediate pay ment or SBUSTACH N OF the nhale of v part orfif>
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sum or sums owing as aforesaid but shall Pe a continuing security

binding on me and my" personal répresentatives until the expiration

of three months arter the receipl by you from me or them of Notice

in writing to discontinue it, notwithstanding any: change in name or

styl= or constitution of customers.

I agree with the submission of the l=arned Counsel for the 1% Defendant
that in view of the continuing Guarantee (Exhibit P16 and Exhibit P21)
evecuted by the 2@ and 2™ Plaintiffs, respactively, their liability is current

and valid as the debt owed by the 1% Plaintiff remains unpaid.

The 1% Defendant maintains that up until today the debt is still due and
has not been repaid by the Plaintiffs and that neither the 15 Plaintiff nor
the 2™ Plaintiff and 3 Plaintiff ever notified the 19 Defendant in wr iting to

discontinue the Guarantee.

It is noteworthy that apart from the issue raised by the Plaintiffs that the
debt is stature-baired, the Plaintiffs never entered any other defence to

the counter claim of the 1% Defendant.

The 1% Defendant’s counter claim is that the 1% Plaintiff and its guarantors,
the 2™ and 3™ Plaintiffs are jointly and severally indebted to the 1
Deferdant in the sum of N19,199,680.52 as at 31/05/2006 and interest
thereof at 25% per annum until payment. Exhibit D2, the statement of
Account of the 1% Plaintiff shows that as at 31/5/2006, the, aaﬂamxff
owed the 1% Dafendant N1S,199,680.52. S
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In apparent reply to the counter claim of the 15 Derenaant Plaintiffs’

Counsel, in his Final wiitten address to the 1% defendants Final written
address submitted that the Plaintiffs were never in brea ch of the overdraft
facility agreement. That the Plaintiffs were required to make repayments of
the debt from two sub-heads: |

a. From contract proceeds directly from the P.T.F.
b. C sh generation from the company’s internal operations.

Learnad Counsel submitted that proczeds were to flow directly from the
P.T.F. and that this was the only guarantze of payment in the entire
transaction. That the P.T.F. and the 1% Plaintiff made a guarantee to the
1% Defendant as regards the repayment and that having made that
guarantee, Exhibit P2, which is the letter of domiciliation of payment,
datzd the 04/02/199¢, the 1% Plaintiff was no longer to be held to repay
any fund which the P.T.F. had undartalen to pay. That the 1% Defendant’s
witness, Mr. Abimbade Olumide Dere, DWI1, in cross-=xamination when
asked who cught to have paid back the money, answered that the
proceeds were supposad to come directly from the PT.F. That the DW1

was shown the Exhibit P2 and identified it.

Learned Counsel argued that it was surprising that the 1% Defendant filed
its defence to the Plaintiffs’ claim and added a counter claim and yet never
deemed it necessary to join the P.T.F. as a party. That the DW1, when
“asked whether the P.T.F. had written a letter to the 1% Defendant showing
that the 1% Plaintiff had completad the jobs, he answered no. That the
DW1 also answered in the negative when ashed if th;r@ﬁ;ﬂ\t‘h
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sued P.T.F. for the guarantee it undertool to pay the 1% Defendant

directly.

Learned Counssl further arguad that a contract of guarantez must be
made in writing, hence Exhibit P2 was put i»n writing. He relied on the case

of Okeaya-Inneh v. Quality Finance Limited (2006) ALL FWLR (Pt.
300) 1632.

Learned Counsel also relied on the case of Nwankwo v. E.D.C.S. (2007)
ALL FWLR (Pt. 360) 1448 at 1453, where it was held that the Creditor
~is now entitled to procead against the guarantor without or independent of
the incident of the default of the principal debtor, immediately the debtor
becomes unable to repay the outstanding debt.

The Court further held that a guarantm is boLind by the written agreement

he entered into.

It was the submission of Counsel, therefore, that not having joined or sued
the P.T.F., who had undertalen to indemnify and pay directly to the 1%
Dafendant, the Plaintiffs canrot be said to be indebted to the 1% Defendant

as regards the overdraft facility.

Furthermore, learned Counsel submitted that it was alsc provided in the
repayment clause in Exhibit P1 that cash gener ation ﬂom the Company’s
internal operations was to constitute a mode of payment. That the 1%
Defendant’s only witness under cross-examination, agreed that the
Plaintiffs have paid the sum of N1.5million. It .mab‘;he submission of
Counsel that the uth-~r sums allegedly uvw,%\\tﬁw 1“ *{flnddnt ought to
{2 F’ANI« ‘Du:)mm(;/
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hav\. been sourced from the P.T.F., but that thw 1“ Defendant never joined

thz P.T.F. in the counter claim or sued the P.T.F. independently. That the
1 Defendant had abandonzd the counter claim as no issue has arisen

from the said counter claim.

The 1% Defendant’s Counsel, in response to the submission by the Plaintiffs
that the P.T.F was the guarantar of the debt by virtue of Exhibit P2 and
that the 1% Defendant should go to the P.T.F. to look fdr repayment,
stated that the Plaintiffs’ Counsel's submission is based on a
misconcepﬁor:. The 1% Defendant’s Counsel submitted that Exhibit P2 is
not a guarantze but as the title shows, “domiciliation of payment.” He
submitted further that the cases of Okeaya-Inneh v. Quality Finance
Limited (supra) and Nwankwo v. E.D.C.S. (supra) cited by the
Plaintiffs’ Counsel deal with contract of Guarantze whereas the Exhibit P2
in the case in hand has to do with domiciliation of payment, which the
Plaintiff himseIf has breached. That the above citad two cases do not apply

to the circumstances of the present case as regards Exhibit P2,

Learned Counsel further distinguished the concept -of domiciliation of
~ payment from Guarantze when he cited in aid the Court of Appeal decision
in the case of Umegu v. Oko (2001) 17 NWLR (Pt. 741) 142 at pp.
157 D-F, 158 A-C, Ratio 2 and page 156 A-D, Ratio 3, where the
Court explained the meaning and effect of & guarantze. The Court of
Appeal stated as follows:
"Collateral agreement for performance of another’s undertaking or an
agreement in which the guarantaf agrees to salisfis the debt of
another (the debtor) onh i and when the debtor 1ails ram\_ R
| | ,/ & R AN f’tu =4
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In that same case, the Court stipulated the ingredients of a legally bmdlng

guarantee as follows:

a. There must be three parties involved in the contract, viZ:

b. (i) a Creditor | «
(i)  a Principal debtor '
(i) a Promissory who undertales to discharge the principal

debtors liability should the latter fail to discharge it himself

c. There must be an agreement betwaen the parties.

d. The agreement must be in writing and if not under seal, there must
be valuable consideration.

e. The Contract or agreement must not be illegal as illegality generally
renders any coritract null and void ab initio a_nd the party seeking to

enforce it will have no remedy in a Court of law.

Learned Counsel submitted that Exhibit F2 in this case is not an agreement
between the Plaintiffs and the 1% Defendant and the P.T.F. avidencing any
guarantee o promise or undertaking by P.T.F. to satisfy any d_ebt owed by
the Plaintiffs to the Dafendant if the Flaintiffs refused to pay and so it is
not & guarantee. It was further submitted that.there is no agreesment
under seal or at all between the 1¢t Defendant and the P.T.F. and that
there is no consideration flowing either way. That the P.T.F. is not privy to
the contract betvvéen the Plaintiffs andwthe 1% Defendant. That as
general rule, @ contract affects only persons thereto and cannot bhe
enforced by or against a person who is not a party to it. That the contract
in this case is between the Plaintiffs and the 15 Defendant and t [
Uf;
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not privy to it so the P.T.F, cannot sue or be sued on the g.;nt«‘?r
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Counsel relied on the case of Makwe v. Nwukor (2001) 14 NWLR(Pt.
733) 356, Ratio 1 at p. 372 B-f, 378 E-F and 381 D. |

~ JFurthermore, leamed Counsel cubmitted that the guarantors of the

overdraft facility in this case are the 3 and "9 Plaintiffs via Exhibits P16
and P21 and not F.T.F. That Exhibit P2 which the P.T.F. wrote to the 1%
Defendant is not @ guarantee and cannct be construed as a guarantee to
repay the debt for which the p.T.F. can be sued by the 1% .Defendant. He
submitted that the proncuncement of the Supreme Court in Nwankwo v.
E.D.C.S. (supra) does not apply to the special circumstances of the

present case.

Learned Counsel submitted that in view of the admission of the Plaintiffs
that they eventually collectad the entire contract proczeds via another
bank that is not the 1% Defendant, the issue of P.T.F's involvement by way

of being joined as a party pursuant to the 1% Defendant’s counter claim

has become an academic exercise that is of no moment in this case.

The 1% Defendant’s Couhsel also deniad that the 1% Defendant has
sbandoned the counter claim as alleged by the Plaintiffs. Learned Counsel
for the 1% Defendant argued that the 1%t Defendant pleaded facts in
support of the counter claim and also gave evidence through DW1 in
support of the counter claim. That the 1% Defendant also relied on several

Exhibits including Exhibit P1, the Overdraft Facility Offer Letter, Exhibit

- P15, the Application for Facility, Exhibits P16 and P21, being the Guarantee

signad by the 3 and 2™ Plaintiffs, respectively, Exhi

; ‘. ARITA PHARMACEUTICALS LTD. & 2 OP5. v STERLING EANK PLC & 1 ANOR:
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Exhibit D2, being the Statement of Account of the 1%

sq;r\/ m)u
1g that the 1% Plaintiff is indebted to the 1% Defendant,

F'rc»ml

ounsel also referred to the admission of PW1 and PW?2 during
niination that the Flaintiffs have oniy paid the sum of K3.6million,

with these pieces of evidence, it cannot be said at law that the 1%
ndant has abandonzd the counter claim. He urged the Court to
iscountenance the reply fil2d by the Plaintiffs and dismiss the claim as

“baseless and grant the counter claim.

RESOLUTION OF ISSUE 4
The fact about the loan of H5million given to the 1% Plaintiff by the 1% 5
Defendant is not in dispute. The Plaintiffs agreed that NSmillion was given
to the 1% Plaintiff out of the N20million agread upon by the parties. The
Plaintiffs have also admitted that they have only paid M3.6million out of the

debt. Despite several demands, the Plaintiffs did not pay up the entire

debt. The Memaoranduin of Understanding executed by the parties and the .
repayment schedule was not followed by the Plaintiffs. Part of the debt

remains unpaid. :

The Overdraft Facility contract was exscuted on .the 09/02/1998. By the
time the Plaintiffs instituted this Suit in 2007, the Plaintiffs pleaded in their
Amended Statement of Claim that the Plaintiffs are no longer indebted to
the 1% Defendant because the debt has lasted for mare than 6 years, The
Plaintiffs alsc led evidence to show that even if the debt was still current
- and enforceatle, it is the P.T.F., the supposed Guarantor of the Overdraft
facility that shtould' b= .held responsible to repay the debt and not the

Plaintiffs. That since the 1% Defendant did not join the P.T mé supbnbe@
'9:
4/

[ RAN w(./ ‘\Q':>

_ I ' YA
ARITA PHARMACEUTICALS LTD. & 2 OR5. vi STERLING BaNK FLC 2 1 ANOR: | ST NG Dy 7 w. C
i "'“ :
g% e

V_‘ X 'w”f ' LS‘ Y




-uarantor, as a party to the counter claim, the 1= Defendant seemed to

" have abandoned the caunter claim.

1 have reviewed the submissions of Counsel on both sides and this Court
aligns itself with the submissions of the learned Counsel for the 1%
Defendant that the 1% Defendant did not abandon the counter claim. That
the 1% Defendant had no right to sue the P.T.F. for tha debt or join the
PT.F.asa party for recovery of the debt because the 1% Defendant has no
privity of contract with the P.T.F. The averdraft facility contract is between

the 1% Defendant and the 1% Plaintiff, and the Guarantors are the 2" and

3¢ plaintiffs who executad the guarantee, being Exhibits F21 and P16,

respectively.

Furthérmore, 1 find that Exhibit P2 is not a guarantee hut a mere letter of
domiciliation of payment written by the P.T.F. to the 1%t Defendant as @
security for the debt owed the 1% Defendant by the 1% Plaintiff. It does not
amount to a quarantee. See the case Of Umegu v. Oko (2001) 17
NWLR (Pt. 741) 142 at pp. 157 D-F. See also the case of Makwe V.
Nwukor (2001) 14 NWLR (Pt. 733) 356, Ratio 1 at p- 372 B-F,

which explains the concept of privity of contract.

1 agree that the 1%t Defendant is not entitled to proceed against the P.T.F.
to recover the debt owed by the 1% Plaintiff hecause P.T.F. never acted as

guarantor of the overdraft facility in quéstion and 1 so hold.

The ™ and 3" Plaintiffs admitted in their respective testimonies before the

Court, under cross-examination, that the 1% Plaintiff was eventually paid by

p.T.F, the entire contract praceeds through another bank, UBA,_P . and
2 TR
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ot the 1 Dﬁrendam puring the € wamination- Gnechief of DW1, the 1%

Defendant led. chdenL-' tn show that the 13 Plaintff owes the 1%
Defendant a- debt uf aver Mi1gmillion and tendered in evidence, Exhibit D2,

being the Statement of Account of the 1% Plaintiff.

With all this evidence placed before the Court, this Court is satisfied that
the 1% Dcft:i'\ddl'll. pever abandoned the Counter Claim but has sufficiently
adduced material evidence before this Court to support the Counter Claim.

See Exhibits P1, P4, P9, P15, P16, P21, P22 and D2, respectively.

The 1% Defendant to my mind has proved its Counter Claim.

On the other hand, 1 find that the Plaintiffs who dragged the Defendants to
Court in this Suit have not placed sufficient material, as evidence, before
this Court to substantiate their claim. The burden of proaf is on the
Plaintiffs to prove their case on the preponderance of evidence and
balance of probability. Sct: cections 133, 134 and 136 of the Evidence Act,
2011. See also the case of Agala v. Egwere (2010) ALL FWLR (Pt.
532) 1609, S.C.

In the present case, the Plaintiffs have failed to diécharge the burden
placed on them by law, whereas, the 1% Defendant/Counter Claimant has

discharged that burden as regards its counter claim.

In the result, the Suit of the plaintiffs fails, while the Counter Claim of the

1% Defendant/Counter Claimant succeeds.

On the whole, Issue 1, Issue 2, Tssue 3 and Issue 4 have all been resolved

in favour of the 1% and 2™ Defendants.
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n Order dismissing the Suit of the Plaintiffs. The

€ d

5 upheld by this Court and the same is granted as pr ayed.

yrder as to costs.
| be the Judgement of this Court in this Suit.

) JUDGE
——LJ—7_ ,,/e,. . g [
T FEUERAL HIGK COURY
Hon. Justice Phoebe Msuean Ayua LOKOJA
Judge | "
Wednesday, the 25" day of Mav. 2016
Parties: The 3" Plaintiff is present in Court and all the other
 parties are absent from Court. |
Appearances: Patrick Ekuri, Esq., for the Piaintiffs; C. M. Nwaka, Esq.
for the 1% Defendant, and C.A. Okoli, Esq., for the 2™
=fendant. o
SUDGE
FEDERAL HIGH couRy
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Hon. Justice Phioebe Fsuean Ayua T —
Judge
I/Lednebda}, the 25" day ofMav 7015
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